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Sonic Automotive is proud of its many accomplishments during 2006. We will cofer each of these in more
. o i it
detail, but over the past year, we have: S ;136'!"/

+ continued the implementation of new technologies;
* introduced new merchandising strategies in our used vehicle department;
* expanded capacity in our high margin parts and service business; and

» strengthened our balance sheet.

All of this has led us back to the top of the peer group in most key operating metrics.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During 2006, our revenue from continuing operations grew 9.5% to approximately $8.0 billion. We
outperformed the industry in new and used vehicle same store volume, increased margins and controlled our
expenses-—a win all the way around. Our total same store revenue grew 3.9% for the full year ending December
31, 2006, which was driven by strong results in every department. We believe the two primary contributors to
this organic growth are the continued implementation of our best practices and the continued improvements we
have made to our brand mix. For the full year of 2006, luxury and impoert brands represented 83% of our total
revenues. These brands are gaining market share and we believe this trend will continue to benefit Sonic
Automotive. Over the years, we have termed this strategy “portfolio enrichment” because these brands tend to be
more stable operating platforms with higher margins, lower associate turnover and more consistent performance.

We were able to increase our top line while maintaining or increasing the gross margin in each of our
departments and reducing our operating expenses as a percentage of gross profits. Qur overall gross margin
increased 10 basis points during 2006 to end the full year at 15.4%. This increase in our gross margin was driven
by our high margin parts and service department where we ended the year with a gross margin of 50%. We
believe this consistent success in fixed operations is one of Sonic Automotive’s core strengths. Over the years,
we have seen a steady increase in both our fixed operations revenue and gross margin. Excluding the effect of
charges taken in the second quarter, our operating expenses as a percentage of gross profit improved 100 basis
points to end the year at 75.1%. Increases in our rent expense as a percentage of gross profit have been more than
offset by decreases in compensation, advertising and other expenses.

TECHNOLOGY AND OPERATING INITIATIVES

Over the past year, we have continued the implementation of our single dealer management system, our
electronic F&l menu and our used vehicle merchandizing and inventory management technology. We expect to
complete these technology implementations before the end of 2007. We believe the conversion to a single dealer
management system will bring benefits well beyond just the cost savings that come from consolidating to a
single vendor. The more significant, longer-term benefits will come from training and productivity improvements
we expect to gain as a result of standardizing all the significant processes that interact with this technology. In
addition, we believe the visibility and consistency of our operational and financial data that results from a single
dealership technology platform will enable us to capitalize on future revenue opportunities and further reduce
operating expenses and inventory levels.

We have been rolling out our used vehicle merchandizing and inventory management system over this last
year and the early results are promising. The unit volume sales growth at those stores where we have
implemented this program has consistently outperform?d both our other stores and the used vehicle market in




general. Qur goal in this process is to, over time, increase our ratio of used vehicle unit sales to new vehicle unit
sales from our current 48% to the sector average of 56%. We realize we may never be the sector leader in this
metric given our brand and geographical mix of dealerships, but we recognize the significant incremental
revenue and margin opportunity represented by this segment of our business.

The introduction of the electronic F&I menu will serve to improve the transparency of the information we
present to our customers. In addition to this very clear benefit, we believe it will drive future product penetration
and increase F&I revenue as we consistently present all of our product offerings to every customer we serve,

In addition to these various technology and operating initiatives, we continue to expand the high margin
parts and service segment of our business. During 2006, we increased our overall service stall capacity by 246
stalls. We believe this investment will serve to drive future parts and service revenue and allow us to maintain
customer satisfaction in this critical piece of our business. Our fixed operations business will also benefit from
the strength of our brand mix as we continue to invest in those brands which are gaining market share. It is those
incremental vehicle sales which will drive our parts and service business growth.

FINANCIAL DISCIPLINE

One of the longer-term goals we had established for ourselves was to reduce our leverage 1o a 40% debt to
total capital ratio. We are proud to have been able to reach that goal by the end of the third quarter of 2006. At
year end, our long-term debt was 39.5% of our total capital. We were able to reach this goal through a
combination of fewer acquisitions, consistent inventory management and increased discipline over capital
expenditures. We are applying this financial discipline to every capital allocation decision we make. As we
identify potential future acquisitions, we will remain patient, prudent and opportunistic by focusing on stable
dealerships within our existing markets where we have the potential to further improve their operating
performance. We also remain disciplined in our capital expenditures by targeting those projects which will
increase capacity in the higher margin segments of our business. Or, as we like to put il, we're going to spend
money where we make money.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Sonic Automotive is committed to continuing the consistent performance it has demonstrated since we
announced our strategy of “Return to Excellence” at the beginning of 2005. We have consistently delivered on
the promises that we made to you, our stockholders. We are a strong operating company with standardized best
practices, an experienced management team assisted by a talented group of automotive retailing specialists
throughout our organization and a company with a disciplined approach to capital decisions with a clear vision
on how (o capitalize on our future opportunities. Our acquisition strategy, our brand mix and the many operating
initiatives discussed above all represent future growth opportunities for Sonic Automotive. We look forward to
taking advantage of these opportunities in the coming years.

0. Bruton Smith




Business Strategy

Sonic Automotive, Inc. was incorporated in Delaware in 1997. We are one of the largest automotive
retailers in the United States. As of March 8, 2007, we operated 173 dealership franchises at 150 dealership
locations, representing 36 different brands of cars and light trucks, and 38 collision repair centers in 15 states.
Each of our dealerships provides comprehensive services including (1) sales of both new and used cars and light
trucks; (2} sales of replacement parts and performance of vehicle maintenance, warranty, paint and repair
services (collectively, “Fixed Operations”); and (3) arrangement of extended service contracts, financing and
insurance and other aftermarket products (collectively, “F&I”) for our automotive customers.

The following charts depict the diversity of our sources of revenue and gross profit for the year ended
December 31, 2006:

Revenue Gross Profit

Parts, Service
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Our dealership network is geographically organized into divisional and regional dealership groups. As of
December 31, 2006, we operated dealerships in the following geographic markets:

Percent of
Number of Number of 2006 Total

Market Dealerships  Franchises  Revenue
North/South Carolina/Georgia ... ... .. .. i i 19 21 9.7%
Alabama/Tennessee .. ... . . e 16 19 9.9%
Flortda ... o 14 17 8.6%
OO . .. 6 9 2.3%
MIChigan . ..o 6 6 31%
Mid-AHantic . ... e 6 7 53%
Eastern Division . . ... ... ... .. . e 67 79 38.9%
HoOUston .o e e 18 21 15.7%
Dallas . . e e e e 7 9 7.9%
L0 Y T 14 - S 7 7 4.8%
Central Division . ... ... .. ... ... ... ... . . . i 32 37 28.4%
North Bay (San Francisco) . .. ... ..o e e e 11 13 9.1%
South Bay (San Francisco} . .. ... ... 13 14 7.3%
Los Angeles Notth ... e 12 14 7.6%
Los Angeles South ... .. . e 6 6 33%
B ) 1T o 2 2 1.7%
T TP P 4 4 2.6%
L0 15 o 2 2 1.1%
Western Division ... ... ... ... . ... .. 50 35 32.7%
Total ... e 149 171 100.0%




During 2006, we acquired seven dealerships, representing eight franchises, and disposed of nine dealerships,
representing 12 franchises. We expect our acquisition activity to provide approximately 10% to 15% of
additional annual revenues each year and 2007 activity to be weighted toward the latter half of the year.

The automotive retailing industry remains highly fragmented, and we believe that further consolidation is
likely. We believe that attractive acquisition opportunities continue to exist for dealership groups with the capital
and experience to identify, acquire and professionally manage dealerships.

Further Develop Strategic Markets and Brands. Our growth strategy is focused on large metropolitan
markets, predominantly in the Southeast, Southwest, Midwest and California, We also seek to acquire stable
franchises that we believe have above average sales prospects. A majority of our dealerships are either luxury or
mid-line import brands. For the year ended December 31, 2006, 83.3% of our total revenue was generated by
import and luxury dealerships, which generally have higher operating margins, more stable fixed operations
departments, lower associate turnover and lower inventory levels. We expect this trend toward acquiring more
import and luxury dealerships to continue in the near future.

The following table depicts the breakdown of our new vehicle revenues by brand:

Percentage of
New Vehicle Revenue
Year Ended December 31,

M 2004 2005 2006

Honda .. ... .. . . . . 144% 153% 15.2%
BMW e 13.5% 14.5% 13.7%
L 127% 11.8% 13.0%
Mercedes ... ... . 3.6% 6.5% 9.5%
Cadillac . .. ... 11.2% 9.2% 8.8%
General Motors (2) .. ..o 10.1% 8.8% 8.0%
Ford ... e 8.9% 8.1% 7.7%
LeXUS . 6.9% 74%  06.8%
Volvo o 3.5% 3.1% 2.5%
NiSSAN ..o 2.2% 2.1% 1.8%
Hyundai ... ... ... . . . 1.5% 1.4% 1.5%
Audi L 1.6% 1.6% 1.4%
Chrysler (B} ..o e 1.5% 1.4% 1.0%
Volkswagen .......... .. i 09% 09% 09%
OtherLuxury (4) ... .. 52% 53% 57%
Other (5) ..o 2.3% 2.6% 2.5%
Total .. 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

(1) In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No, 144, prior years’ income statement data reflect
reclassifications to exclude additional franchises sold, identified for sale, or terminated subsequent to
December 31, 2005 which had not been previously included in discontinued operations. See Notes 1 and 2
to our accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements which discusses these and other factors thar affect
the comparability of the information for the periods presented.

(2) Includes Buick, Chevrolet, GMC, Pontiac and Saturn

(3) Includes Chrysler, Dodge and Jeep

(4) Includes Acura, Hummer, Infiniti, Jaguar, Land Rover, Maybach, Morgan, Porsche and Saab

{5) Includes Isuzu, KIA, Mini, Scion and Subaru




Increase Sales of Higher Margin Products and Services. 'We continue to pursue opportunities to increase
our sales of higher-margin products and services by expanding the following:

Finance, Insurance and Other Aftermarket Products: Each sale of a new or used vehicle provides us
with an opportunity to earn financing fees and insurance commissions and to sell extended service contracts
and other aftermarket products. We currently offer a wide range of nonrecourse financing, leasing, other
aftermarket products, service contracts and insurance products to our customers. We are continuing to
emphasize menu-selling techniques and other best practices to increase our sales of F&I products at both
newly acquired and existing dealerships.

Parts, Service & Repair: Each of our dealerships offers a fully integrated service and parts
department. Manufacturers permit warranty work to be performed only at franchised dealerships. As a
result, franchised dealerships are uniquely qualified to perform work covered by manufacturer warranties on
increasingly complex vehicles, We believe we can continue to grow our profitable parts and service
business by using our access to capital to increase service capacity, investing in sophisticated equipment and
well trained technicians, using variable rate pricing structures, focusing on customer service and efficiently
managing our parts inventory. In addition, we believe our emphasis on selling extended service contracts
will drive further service and parts business in our dealerships as we increase the potential to retain current
customers beyond the term of the standard manufacturer warranty period.

Certified Pre-Owned Vehicles. Various manufacturers provide franchised dealers the opportunity to sell
certified pre-owned (“CPO”) vehicles. This certification process extends the standard manufacturer warranty on
the particular vehicle. We typically earn higher revenues and gross margins on CPO vehicles compared to
non-certified vehicles. We also believe the extended manufacturer warranty increases our potential to retain the
pre-owned purchaser as a future parts and service customer. Since CPQ warranty work can only be performed at
franchised dealerships, we believe the used vehicle business will become more clearly segmented and CPO sales
and similar products will increase in volume.

“Value” Used Vehicles. A market segment that drives used vehicle volume that we have not historically
participated in is vehicles with retail prices below $10,000. Historically, if we received a trade-in which did not
meet our then existing internal criteria for used vehicles (in many instances these would be “value” vehicles), we
would wholesale the vehicle. We believe the market for these “value” vehicles is deep and not as sensitive to
market fluctuations as higher priced used vehicles. We have begun to more aggressively market and retail these
vehicles.

Emphasize Expense Control. We continually focus on controlling expenses and expanding margins at the
dealerships we acquire and integrate into our organization. We manage these costs, such as advertising and
variable compensation expenses, so that they are generally related to vehicle sales and can be adjusted in
response to changes in vehicle sales volume. The majority of our non-clerical deatership personnel are paid either
a commission or a modest salary plus commissions. In addition, dealership management compensation is tied to
individual dealership profitability. We believe we can further manage these types of costs through best practices,
standardization of compensation plans, controlled oversight and accountability, reducing associate turnover and
centralizing and standardizing processes and systems such as a single dealership management system, accounting
office consolidation, payroll system consolidation and inventory management technology.

Achieve High Levels of Customer Satisfaction. We focus on maintaining high levels of customer
satisfaction. Qur personalized sales process is designed to satisfy customers by providing high-quality vehicles in
a positive, “consumer friendly” buying environment. Several manufacturers offer specific financial incentives on
a per vehicle basis if certain Customer Satisfaction Index (“CSI”) levels (which vary by manufacturer) are
achieved by a dealership. In addition, all manufacturers consider CSI scores in approving acquisitions. In order to
keep management focused on customer satisfaction, we include CSI results as a component of our incentive-
based compensation programs.




Manage Leverage. Prior to 2004, we had maintained a long-term debt to total capital ratio of
approximately 48% to 52%, depending on the timing of our acquisitions. We have been steadily reducing that
ratio in recent years. We believe it prudent over time to maintain our long-term debt to total capital ratio to be
between 35% and 40% over the long term. At December 31, 2006, our long-term debt to total capital ratio, net of
cash and cash equivalents, was 39.4%.

Company Information

Our website is located at www.sonicautomotive.com. Qur annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to those reports, as well as proxy statements and
other information we file with, or furnish to, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) are available free
of charge on our website. We make these documents available as soon as reasonably practicable after we file
them with, or furnish them to, the SEC. Except as otherwise stated in these documents, the information contained
on our website or available by hyperlink from our website is not incorporated into this Annual Report or other
documents we file with, or furnish to, the SEC.




Selected Financial Data

This selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the consclidated financial statements and related

notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

We have accounted for all of our deaiership acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting and, as a
result, we do not inciude in our consolidated financial statements the results of operations of these dealerships
prior to the date we acquired them. Our selected conselidated financial data reflect the results of operations and
financial positions of each of our dealerships acquired prior to December 31, 2006. As a result of the effects of
our acquisitions and other potential factors in the future, the historical consolidated financial information
described in selected consolidated financial data is not necessarily indicative of the results of our operations and
financial position in the future or the results of operations and financial position that would have resulted had
such acquisitions occurred at the beginning of the periods presented in the selected consolidated financial data,

Year Ended December 31,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(dollars in thousands except per share data)
Income Statement Data (1) (2):
Total revenues .. ............c...... $5,561,139 $6,020,171 $6,470,050 $7.278,720 $7,972,074
Income from continuing operations
before income taxes . .. ........... $ 157,969 $ 122,294 $ 142,085 $ 167,389 § 165,357
Income from continuing operations ... $ 97,847 § 80909 3% 88145 $ 104,844 § 98,566
Basic earnings per share from
continuing operations ............ $ 234 $ 198 § 213 % 251 § 2.33
Diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations ............ 5 224 % 1.89 % 204 5 240 % 222
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data (2):
Total aSSetS .+ v v v $2,375,308 $2,685,113 $2,897,884 $3,025,501 33,124,764
Total fong-term debt ............... $ 645809 $ 696,285 § 671,796 $ 715,038 $ 601,334
Total long-term liabilities (including
long-termdebt) ................. $ 703,183 $ 791,23 § 799436 $ 876956 3 791938
Cash dividends declared per common
share . ...... ... i $ — 3 020 % 044 § 048 3% 0.48

(1) In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, income stalement data reflect
reclassifications from the prior years presentation to exclude franchises sold, identified for sale, or
terminated subsequent to December 31, 2005 which had not been previously included in discontinued
operations. See Note 2 to our accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, Business Acquisitions and
Dispositions, which discusses these and other factors that affect the comparability of the information for the

periods presented.

(2) As mentioned in “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resulls of
Operations—Liguidity and Capital Resources” and Note 2 to our accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements, business combinations and dispositions have had a material impact on our reported financial

information.




Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of the results of operations and financial condition should be read in
conjunction with the Sonic Automotive, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Annuval Report. The financial and statistical data contained in the
following discussion for all periods presented reflects our December 31, 2006 classification of franchises
between continuing and discontinued operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144,

Overview

We are one of the largest automotive retailers in the United States, As of March 8, 2007 we operated 173
dealership franchises, representing 36 different brands of cars and light trucks, at 150 locations and 38 collision
repair centers in 15 states. Our dealerships provide comprehensive services including sales of both new and used
cars and light trucks, sales of replacement parts, performance of vehicle maintenance, manufacturer warranty
repairs, paint and collision repair services, and arrangement of extended service contracts, financing, insurance
and other aftermarket products for our customers. Although vehicle sales are cyclical and are affected by many
factors, including general economic conditions, consumer confidence, levels of discretionary personal income,
interest rates and available credit, our parts, service and collision repair services are not closely tied to vehicle
sales and are not as dependent upon near-term sales volume. As a result, we believe the diversity of these
preducts and services reduces the risk of periodic economic downturns.

The automobile industry’s total amount of new vehicles sold decreased by 2.5% 1o 16.6 million vehicles in
2006 from 17.0 million vehicles in 2005. From an industry perspective, new vehicle unit sales on a year-over-year
basis grew 4.8% for import brands and contracted 8.1% for domestic brands. Many factors such as brand and
geographic concentrations have caused our past results to differ from the industry’s overall trend. In 2006, both our
import and domestic stores outperformed the overall new vehicle industry’s year-over-year unit sales change.

We sell similar products and services that exhibit similar economic characteristics, use similar processes in
selling our products and services and sell our products and services to similar classes of customers. As a result of
this and the way we manage our business, we have aggregated our operating segments into a single segment for
purposes of reporting financial condition and results of operations. '

In the ordinary course of business we evaluate our dealership franchises for possible disposition based on
various performance criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we sold 12 franchises -and had
approved, but not completed, the disposition of 30 additional franchises. These franchises have been identified as
held for sale because of unprofitable operations or other strategic considerations. We believe the disposition of
these franchises will allow us to focus our management attention on those remaining stores with the highest
potential return on investment.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Critical accounting policies are those that are both most important to the portrayal of our financial position
and results of operations and require the most subjective and complex judgments. The following is a discussion
of what we believe are our critical accounting policies and estimates. See Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional discussion regarding our accounting policies.




Finance, Insurance and Service Contracts—We arrange financing for customers through various financial
institutions and receive a commission from the lender either in a flat fee amount or in an amount equal to the
difference between the actual interest rates charged to customers and the predetermined base rates set by the
financing institution. We also receive commissions from the sale of various insurance contracts and non-recourse
third party extended service contracts to customers. Under these contracts, the applicable manufacturer or third
party warranty company is directly liable for all warranties provided within the contract.

In the event a customer terminates a financing, insurance or extended service contract prior to the original
termination date, we may be required to return a portion of the commissicn revenue originally recorded to the
third party provider {(“chargebacks”). The commission revenue for the sale of these products and services is
recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time of sale. Our estimate of future chargebacks is established based
on our historical chargeback rates, termination provisions of the applicable contracts and industry data. While
chargeback rates vary depending on the type of contract sold, a 100 basis point change in the estimated
chargeback rates used in determining our estimates of future chargebacks would have changed our estimated
reserve for chargebacks at December 31, 2006 by approximately $1.6 million. Our estimate of chargebacks
($15.1 million as of December 31, 2006) is influenced by early contract termination events such as vehicle
repossessions, refinancings and early pay-off. If these factors change, the resulting impact is a change in our
estimate for chargebacks.

Goodwill—Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently when events or
circumstances indicate that impairment might have occurred. Based on criteria established by the applicable
accounting pronouncements, we allocate the carrying value of goodwill and test it for impairment based on our
three geographic divisions. The $1,167.8 million of goodwill on our balance sheet, including approximately
$12.3 million classified in assets held for sale, at December 31, 2006 was allocated to the following geographic
divisions (dollars in millions):

Eastern Division . ... ... . e $429.8
Central DIVISION . ..o v vt e e e e e e e e $356.4
Westernt DIVISION .o ottt e e e e e e e e $381.6

In evaluating goodwill for impairment, if the fair value of a division is less than the carrying value of that
division, we are then required to proceed to the second step of the impairment test. The second step involves
allocating the calculated fair value to all of the assets of the respective division as if the calculated fair value was
the purchase price of the business combination. This allocation would include assigning value to any previously
unrecognized identifiable assets (including franchise assets) which means the remaining fair value that would be
allocated to goodwill would be significantly reduced. See discussion regarding franchise agreements acquired
prior to July 1, 2001 in Note 1 to our Consolidated Financial Statements. We would then compare the fair value
of the goodwill resulting from this allocation process to the carrying value of the goodwill in the respective
division with the difference representing the amount of impairment.

We use several assumptions and various fair value approaches in evaluating our goodwill for impairment,
These assumptions and approaches include various earnings multiple approaches along with a discounted cash
flow model utilizing estimated future earnings and our weighted average cost of capital.

At December 31, 2006, we were not required to conduct the second step of the impairment test described
above, and we recognized no impairment of the carrying value of our goodwill on our balance sheet at
December 31, 2006.

However, if in future periods we determine that the fair value of one or more of our divisions is less than
their carrying value, we believe that application of the second step of the impairment test would result in a
substantial impairment charge to the goodwill allocated to such division(s) and the amount of such impairment
charge would likely be materially adverse to our consolidated operating results and financial position.
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Insurance Reserves—We have various self-insured and high deductible insurance programs which require
us t0 make estimates in determining the vltimate liability we may incur for claims arising under these programs.
We accrue for insurance reserves on a pro-rata basis throughout the year based on the expected year-end liability.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions are made quarterty by our management based on available
information and take into consideration annual actuarial evaluations based on historical claims experience, claims
processing procedures, medical cost trends and, in certain cases, a discount factor. If our management receives
information which causes us to change our estimate of the year end liability, the amount of expense or expense
reduction required to be recorded in any particular quarter could be material to our operating results, financial
position and cash flows. We estimate the ultimate liability under these programs is between 3$21.9 million and
$24.2 million. At December 31, 2006, we had $22.6 million reserved for such programs. We used a discount rate
of 4.0% to calculate the present value of our estimated workers” compensation claims. A discount rate of 4.0%
was used to calculate the present value of our general liability claim reserves. A 100 bps change in the discount
rate or a 5 basis point change in the Selected Loss Cost Estimate would not have a significant impact on the
reserve balance.

Lease Exit Accruals—The majority of our dealership properties are leased under long-term operating lease
arrangements. When leased properties are no longer utilized in operations, we record lease exit accruals. These
situations could include the relocation of an existing facility or the sale of a franchise where the buyer will not be
subleasing the property for either the remaining term of the lease or for an amount equal to our obligation under
the lease. The lease exit accruals represent the present value of the lease payments, net of estimated sublease
rentals, for the remaining life of the operating leases and other accruals necessary to satisfy the lease commitment
to the landlord. At December 31, 2006, we had $8.7 million accrued for lease exit costs.

Legal Proceedings—We are involved, and expect to continue to be involved, in numerous legal proceedings
arising out of the conduct of our business, including litigation with customers, employment related lawsuits,
contractual disputes and actions brought by governmental authorities. As of December 31, 2006, we had
$2.0 million in legal reserves included in other accrued liabilities. Currently, with the exception of the Galura
litigation matter discussed in “Item 3: Legal Proceedings” of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006, no legal proceedings are pending against or involve us that, in the opinion of
management, could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition
or results of operations. However, the results of legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, and an
unfavorable resolution of one or more of these proceedings could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and prospects.

Classification of Franchises in Continuing and Discontinued Operations—We classify the results from
operations of our continuing and discontinued operations in our consolidated statements of income based on the
provisions of SFAS No. 144. Many of these provisions involve judgment in determining whether a franchise will
be reported as continuing or discontinued operations. Such judgments include whether a franchise will be sold or
terminated, the period required to complete the disposition and the likelihood of changes to a plan for sale. If in
future periods we determine that a franchise should be either reclassified from continuing operations to
discontinued operations or from discontinued operations to continuing operations, previously reported
consolidated statements of income may be reclassified in order to reflect the current classification.

Income Taxes—As a matter of course, we are regularly audited by various taxing authorities and from time
to time, these audits result in proposed assessments where the ultimate resolution may result in us owing
additional taxes. We believe that our tax positions comply, in all material respects, with applicable tax law and
that we have adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable outcome related to these matters. Included in
other accrued liabilities at December 31, 2006 is $3.4 million in reserves that we have provided for these matters.

We have $9.3 million in deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryforwards that will expire
between 2014 and 2026. Management reviews these carryforward positions, the time remaining until expiration
and other opportunities to utilize these carryforwards in making an assessment as to whether it is more likely than
not that these carryforwards will be utilized. We have recorded a valuation allowance of $0.1 million in 2006
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based on our judgment that certain state carryforwards will not be utilized. We have not recorded a valuation
allowance related to our remaining carryforwards because it is more likely than not that taxable income for these
other states will be sufficient to realize the benefits of the associated deferred tax assets. However, the results of
future operations, regulatory framework of these taxing authorities and other related matters cannot be predicted
with certainty. Therefore, actual utilization of the losses which created these deferred tax assets which differs
from the assumptions used in the development of our judgment could result in a charge that would be materially
adverse to our consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

We accrue for income taxes on a pro-rata basis throughout the year based on the expected year end liability.
These estimates, judgments and assumptions are made quarterly by our management based on available
information and take into consideration estimated income taxes based on prior year income tax returns, changes
in income tax law, our income tax strategies and other factors. If our management receives information which
causes us to change our estimate of the year end liability, the amount of expense or expense reduction required to
be recorded in any particular quarter could be material to our operating results, financial position and cash flows,

Cornerstone Acceptance Allowance for Credit Losses—As of December 31, 2006, we had outstanding notes
receivable arising from operations of our wholly-owned finance subsidiary, Cornerstone Acceptance Corporation
(“Cornerstone™), of $28.5 million, net of an allowance for credit losses of $4.9 million. These notes receivable
have average terms of approximately forty-three months and are secured by the related vehicles. Our assessment
of allowance for credit losses considers historical loss ratios, the performance of the current portfolio with
respect to past due accounts, and the average age of the accounts in the current portfolio. As of December 31,
2006, the average loss ratio for mature accounts was 2(0.8% and the average percentage of losses remaining to be
incurred on the current portfolic as a result of the average age of the current portfolio was 44.0%. A change of
100 basis points in both of these percentages would have changed our estimated allowance for credit losses by
$0.2 million at December 31, 2006. These notes receivable are recorded in receivables, net, and other assets on
the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, Sonic’s management is currently evaluating strategic
alternatives for Cornerstone. These alternatives include selling Cornerstone or selling all or a portion of
Cornerstone’s outstanding notes receivabie.

Recent Accounting Pronocuncement

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123R, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”.
SFAS No. 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an
award of equity instruments based on the grant- date fair value of the award. That cost will be recognized over
the period during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award (usually the
vesting period). Tax benefits associated with share-based payments will be recognized as an addition to paid-in
capital. Cash retained as a result of these tax benefits will be presented in the statement of cash flows as
financing cash inflows and operating cash outtlows.

On December 22, 2005, a committee of our Board of Directors approved the accelerated vesting of all
outstanding options to purchase our Class A common stock with an exercise price of more than $22.55 per share.
The purpose of the accelerated vesting of these stock options was to reduce the non-cash compensation expense
we would have recorded in future periods pursuant to SFAS No. 123R. This accelerated vesting reduced future
expense pursuant to SFAS No. 123R by approximately $2.1 million. We recognized approximately $4.5 million
of expense related to stock options during the year ended December 31, 2006. See Note 9 to our Consolidated
Financial Staternents for additional discussion and disclosures.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Interpretation
(“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN No. 48 prescribes a recognition threshold
and measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN No. 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification and the
treatment of interest and penalties. Sonic is currently evaluating the provisions of FIN No. 48, which will be
effective for Sonic in the first quarter of 2007, and has not determined the impact on Sonic’s consolidated
operating results, financial position and cash flows.
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In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS 1577). SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value
measures required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as to whether
or not an instrument is carried at fair value. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. Sonic is currently reviewing the provisions of SFAS No. 157 to determine the impact on its
consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108,
“Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements” (“SAB 1087}, which provides interpretive guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year
misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements for the purpose of a materiality assessment. SAB 108 is
effective as of the end of Sonic’s 2006 fiscal year, allowing a one-time transitional cumulative effect adjustment
to beginning retained earnings as of January 1, 2006 for errors that were not previously deemed material, but are
material under the guidance in SAB 108. See Note | to accompanying consolidated financial statements for a
discussion of the effects of adopting SAB 108.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 139 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We are currently reviewing the provisions of
SFAS No. 159 to determine the impact on our consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Results of Operations

On July 19, 2006, we issued a press release describing charges recorded during the second quarter of 2006
in conncction with the decision to exit certain facility leases and cancel various facility improvement projects,
asset impairments and other asset write-offs, finance chargeback reserves, litigation matters and an adjustment of
certain tax stralegies. These charges are discussed in more detail in the respective areas under the subsequent
heading “Results of Operations™ when discussing results for the year ended December 31, 2006, The amount and
location of the charges in the accompanying consolidated statements of income for the year ended December 31,
2006 are presented in the following table:

Continuing Operations

Loss from
Finance, Selling, general operations
insurance and Depreciation and sale of
and other administrative and Provision for  discontinued
(in millions) revenue  Cost of sales expenses amortization  income taxes  franchises Total
Real estate and other
assel impairments/
write-offs and lease
exitcosts ........... $04 $03 $38.1 521 $— $78 $18.7
Finance chargeback
FEServes ... ...vue... 6.2 — — — — — 6.2
Legal accruals . ........ — — 1.2 — — 0.5 1.7
Effective income tax rate
adjustment ......... — — — — 1.0 — 1.0
$6.6 $03 $93 $2.1 $10 $83 $27.6




The following table summarizes the percentages of total revenues represented by certain items reflected in
our Consolidated Statements of Income.

Percentage of Total
Revenue (1) for the Year

Ended December 31,
2004 205 2006

Revenues:

New vehicles .. ... ... i e 61.4% 61.6% 61.4%

Usedvehicles . ... ... e e s [5.7% 15.5% 16.0%

Wholesale vehicles . ... .. ... .. i 6.8% 6.8% 6.2%

Parts, service and collisionrepair .. ... ... ... oo ... 13.6% 13.0% 14.0%

Finance, insurance and other . ....... .. i 2.5% 2.5% 2.4%
Total TeVETIUE . .. .. . e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of 8ales (2) ..ttt e e e 84.7% 84.7% 84.6%
Gross Profil . . ..o e 153% 153% 154%
Selling, general and administrative expenses . .. ........ ... .. ......... 119% 11.7% 11.7%
Depreciation and amortization . ........ .. ... . e, 02% 02% 03%
OPerating INCOMIE . . ..o o vttt it it e e e st i eeca e e e 32% 34%  3.4%
Interest expense, floorplan ......... ... .. . .. . 04% 05% 0.8%
Interest expense, other, nel . ., .., ... i 0.6% 0.6% 0.5%
Otherexpense, NEL .. ... ... ... ettt ittt et 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Income from continuing operations before income taxes ............... 22%  23% 2.1%
Income tax eXpense .. ....... ... ... i i 08% 09% 0.9%
Income from continuing operations . .............couiieininn.. 1.4% 1.4% 1.2%

(1) In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, prior years’ income statement data reflects
reclassifications to exclude additional franchises sold, identified for sale or terminated subsequent to
December 31, 2005 which had not been previously included in discontinued operations. See Note 2 to our
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements, Business Acquisitions and Dispositions, which discusses
these and other factors that affect the comparability of the information for the periods presented.

(2) The cost of sales line item includes the cost of new and used vehicles, vehicle parts and all costs directly
linked to servicing customer vehicles.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we sold 12 franchises, and had approved, but not completed, the
disposition of 30 additional franchises. The results of operations of these dealerships, including gains or losses on
disposition, have been included in discontinued cperations on the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income for all periods presented. In addition to these dispositions, during the years ended December 31, 2004
and 2005, we disposed or terminated seven and 22 franchises, respectively.

Annual “same store” results of operations represent the aggregate of the same store results for each of the
four quarters in that year. Same store results for each quarter include dealerships that were owned and operated
for the entire quarter in both periods and were classified as continuing operations under SFAS No. 144 at
December 31, 2006. Unless otherwise noted, our discusston of the Results of Operations from “New Vehicles™ to
“Gross Profit and Gross Margins” is on a same store basis.

New Vehicles

New vehicle revenues include the sale and lease of new vehicles, as well as the sale of fleet vehicles. New
vehicle revenues are highly dependent on manufacturer incentives, which vary from cash-back incentives to low
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interest rate financing. New vehicle revenues are also dependent on manufacturers for adequate vehicle
allocations to meet customer demands.

The automobile manufacturing industry is cyclical and historically has experienced periodic downturns
characterized by oversupply and weak demand. As an automotive retailer, we seek to mitigate the effects of this
cyclicality by maintaining a diverse mix of domestic and import branded dealerships. Our brand diversity allows
us to offer a broad range of products at a wide range of prices from lower priced, or economy vehicles, to luxury
vehicles. We believe that this diversity reduces the risk of changes in customer preferences, product supply
shortages and aging products. For the year ended December 31, 2006, 83.3% of our total new vehicle revenue
was generated by import and luxury dealerships compared to 81.7% for 2005. We expect this trend toward more
import and domestic luxury dealerships to continue. We believe demographic and other trends favor import and
luxury brands and expect our acquisition activity in the future to concentrate primarily, but not completely, on
these brands.

For the Year Ended Units or § For the Year Ended - Units or $ %
12/31/2005 12/31/2006 Change Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 Change Change

Total New Vehicle Units

Same Store . ... .. ... ... 146,560 149,257 2,697 1.8% 132,682 141,330 8.648 6.5%
Acquisitionsand Other . .........._... 486 6,990 6,504 1338.3% 1,030 5716 4,686  455.0%
TotalasReported ................. 147,046 156,247 9.201 63% 133712 147,046 13,334 10.0%
Total New Vchicle Revenues (in thousands)
Same Store ............. .. ... .., $4.459,580 $4.623,400 $£163,829 3.7% $3,920.861 $4,216,483 $286,622 7.3%
Acquisitionsand Other . .............. 24,340 273,875 249535 1025.2% 42,929 267,437 224,508 523.0%
Total as Reported . ................ $4.483920 $4,897,284 $413,364 9.2% $3,972,790 $4,483,920 $511,130 12.9%
Total New Vehicle Unit Price
Same Store .............. P, $ 30428 % 30976 § 548 1.8%$ 29619 § 29834 § 215 0.7%
Totat Dealerships as Reported ...... ... $ 30493 § 31343 % 850 28%% 29712 § 30493 § 781 2.6%

The increase in our same store new vehicle unit sales was driven entirely by our import dealerships, which
experienced an increase of 3,290 units, or 3.2%, while our domestic dealerships experienced a decrease of
593 units, or 1.3%. Our import stores underperformed the industry unit volume increase of 4.8%, while our
domestic stores outperformed the industry decrease of 8.1%. Qur top performing import brands for 2006 were
Toyota and Mercedes, which posted increases of 4,125 units, or 17.7%, and 435 units, or 8.8%, respectively.
These increases can be attributed to the introduction of new models, in addition to new body styling and design
on existing models. Additionally, cur BMW stores posted a 2.3% revenue increase despile a slight decline in unit
volume. Our Honda dealerships experienced the most significant decline in sales volume among our import
stores, decreasing by 648 units, or 2.1%, as compared to 2005. Qur top performing domestic brand was Ford,
which posted an increase of 325 units, or 1.9%. Our GM (excluding Cadillac) dealerships experienced a decline
in new retail unit volume of 1,043 units, or 8.2%, but strong fleet sales with an increase of 647 units, or 14.5%,
helped to offset that decline. Additionally, our Cadillac stores posted an improvement in fleet sales of 118 units,
or 37.7%, which offset the domestic decline in new unit volume. '

The increase in our sales price per unit can be attributed mainly to the fact that a larger percentage of our
sales are being generated by higher priced luxury vehicles. Many of our import dealerships experienced price per
unit increases, most notably being Mercedes, BMW and Honda (up 5.5%, 3.1% and 2.5%, respectively). On the
domestic side, our Ford and Cadillac dealerships experienced the most significant increases in sales price per unit
(up 3.5% and 2.9%, respectively). The increases at these dealerships can be attributed to both the various pricing
strategies put in place by Ford and GM during 2005, which lowered 2005 pricing, and a shift from car sales to
truck and SUV sales during the current year.

During 2005, both our import and domestic dealerships experienced increases in total same store new
vehicle unit sales, as compared to 2004. Our import dealerships experienced an increase of 7,510 units, or 8.4%,
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during this time period. This is compared to an industry increase in unit sales at import dealerships of 4.7%. This
increase can be mainly attributed to our Honda and Toyota dealerships, which experienced unit volume increases
of 13.0% and 6.4%, respectively, when compared to 2004. Management stability at our Honda dealerships
contributed to the improvement in new vehicle sales volume. Qur domestic dealerships experienced a unit sales
increase of 1,138 units, or 2.6%, during 20035. This is compared to an industry decrease in unit sales at domestic
dealerships of 2.5%. Our GM (excluding Cadillac) and Ford dealerships experienced declines in new retail unit
volume, but strong fleet sales led to an overall improvement in total new unit sales volume. The declines
experienced at our domestic dealerships in 2004 can be mainly atiributed to declining truck and SUV sales,
which resulted from significant increases in gas prices. Conversely, our Cadillac stores managed only a small
increase in new retail unit volume, while a decline in fleet sales led to an overall decline in new unit volume. All
of our import dealerships except Volvo, Acura and VW experienced sales price per unit increases during 2005.
Qur Honda dealerships experienced the most significant improvement in sales price per unit, increasing by
$1,239, or 5.8%, when compared to 2004. All of our domestic dealerships experienced price per unit decreases.

Used Vehicles

Used vehicle revenues are directly affected by the level of manufacturer incentives on new vehicles, the
number and quality of trade-ins and lease turn-ins and the availability of consumer credit. In addition, various
manufacturers provide franchised dealers the opportunity to “certify” pre-owned vehicles based on criteria
established by the manufacturer. This certification process extends the standard manufacturer warranty. On a
continuing operations basis, our sales of CPO vehicles decreased in 2006 to 34.4% of total used vehicle units
from 38.2% in 2005, a decrease of 2.0%. This decrease was partially due to the increase in non-CPO vehicles
related to the implementation of a standardized merchandising process, that includes the retailing of *value™ used
vehicles, along with an inventory management system at a number of our stores. We expect to continue the
rollout and refinement of the process in 2007. Additionally, industry pricing improvements affected the value of
used vehicles, as the Manheim Used Vehicle Value Index increased by 1.6% from December 2005 to December
2006.

For the Year Ended Units or § % For the Year Ended Units or § %

12/3172005  12/31/2006  Change  Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005  Change  Change

Total Used Vehicle Units

Same Store ................ 61,336 64,341 3,005 4.9% 56,725 59,304 2,579 4.5%
Acquisitions and Other . .. .. .. 120 2,550 2,430 2025.0% 390 2,152 1,762 451.8%
Total as Reported ......... 61,456 66,891 5435 8.8% 57,115 61,456 4,341 7.6%

Total Used Vehicle Revenues
(in thousands)

SameStore ................ $1,122,584  $1,213,001  $ 90,417 8.1% $1,000,630 $1,061,789 % 61,159 6.1%
Acquisitions and Other ... .. .. 4,067 62,019 57,952 1424.9% 13,187 64,862 51,675 391.9%
Total as Reported ......... $1,126,651  $1,275020  §$148,369 13.2% $1,013,817  $1,126,651 $112,834 11.1%
Total Used Vehicle Unit Price
Same Store ... .. ... ... $ 18302 $ 18853 $ 551 30% § 17640 5 17904 $ 264 1.5%
Total Dealerships as
Reported ................ $ 18333 $ 19061 $ 728 40% $ 17,750 $ 18333 § 383 33%

In 2006, our import dealerships contributed to the overall improvement in used unit volume by posting an
increase of 2,490 units, or 6.3%, when compared to 2005. Of our import stores, BMW, Honda and Toyota posted
the most significant increases in used unit volume. Our domestic dealerships alse posted an improvement in used
unit sales volume, increasing by 515 units, or 2.4%. Cadillac was the largest contributor to the domestic increase
in unit volume.

Our overall price per unit increase of 3.0% is due mainly to a favorable used vehicle market. Based on the
improvement in the Manheim Used Vehicle Value Index as stated above, we believe that our price per unit
increase is consistent with the industry as a whole.
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During 2005, the increase in used unit sales volume was driven entirely by our import dealerships, which
posted an increase of 2,786 units, or 8.0%, when compared to 2004. Of our import stores, Honda and BMW
posted the most significant increases in used unit volume. Our Ford and GM (excluding Cadillac) stores posted
the only increases in used unit volume among our domestic brands. Qur Cadillac dealerships experienced the
largest decline in unit volume among all of our brands.

Whaolesale Vehicles

Wholesale vehicle revenues are highly correlated with new and used vehicle retail sales and the associated
trade-in volume. Wholesale revenues are also significantly affected by our corporate inventory management
policies, which are designed to optimize our total used vehicle inventory,

For the Year Ended Units or $ % For the Year Ended Units or $ &
12/31/2005  12/31/2006 ~ Change  Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 Change  Change

Total Wholesale Vehicle Units

SameStore ................ 52,834 49,364 (3,470) (6.6%) 48,960 5E038 2,078 42%
Acquisitions and Other ., .. ... 2.969 4,337 1,368 46.1% 2.527 4,765 2,238 B8.6%
Total as Reported ......... 55,803 53,701 (2,102) (3.8%) 51,487 55.803 4316 8.4%

Total Whaolesale Vehicle
Revenues {in thousands)

Same Store ... $464.642 $437,035 $(27,607) (5.9%) $403204 $435.409 $32.205 8.0%
Acquisitions and Other . _. .. .. 33947 56,477 22,530 66.4% 35644 63,180 27.536 77.3%
Total as Reported .. ....... $408.589 $493.512 3 (5077 (1.0%) $438,848 $498.589 $59,741 13.6%
Total Whalesale Unit Price
Same Store ... ... $ 8794 $ 8833 :) 59 07% § 8235 $§ 8531 $ 296 3.6%
Total Dealerships as
Reported ................ 5 8935 $ 9190 $ 255 29% § 8523 $ 8935 $ 412 4.8%

The decline in wholesale unit volume can be mainly attributed to the implementation of our merchandising
and inventory management process (see “Used Vehicles” above for further discussion). We believe this improved
process allowed us to retail used vehicles we historically would have disposed of through the wholesale markel.

During 2005, higher revenues realized were driven by both an increase in wholesale unit sales volume and
higher unit sales prices at our import dealerships. Unit sales volume at our import dealerships increased by 1,996
units, or 6.3%, while price per unit increased by $495, or 5.8%. Favorable pricing increases followed the
increases experienced in used retail sales and were consistent with the industry. Additicnally, our domestic
dealerships experienced only a slight increase in unit volume. Improvements in retaii vehicle sales volume, the
principal source of wholesale vehicle revenues via trade-in, contributed to the higher overall volume in 2005, as
compared to 2004.

Parts, Service and Collision Repair (“Fixed Operations”)

Same store revenue from these items was as follows (amounts in thousands):

For the Year Ended $ % For the Year Ended $ g,
12312005 12/31/2006  Change Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 Change Change
Parts ... $528965 $ 554,172  $25,207 48% 3463206 $487.205  $23.999 52%
Service ... ... 395.198 420656 25458 6.4% 348.321 $366,271 17.950 5.2%
Collisionrepair .................. 57.568 57.699 131 0.2% 54,312 $ 54,586 274 0.5%

$981,731  $1,032,527  $50.796 52%  $865.839 $908,062  $42223 4.9%

Parts and service revenue consists of customer requested repairs (“‘customer pay™), warranty repairs, retail
parts, wholesale parts and collision repairs. Parts and service revenue is driven by the mix of warranty repairs
versus customer pay repairs, available service capacity, vehicle quality, customer loyalty and manufacturer
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warranty programs. During 2006, 18.8% of our service and parts revenue was generated by warranty repairs and
48.5% by customer pay repairs compared to 20.6% by warranty repairs and 46.6% by customer pay repairs in
2005.

We believe that over time, vehicle quality will improve, but vehicle complexity will offset any revenue lost
from improvement in vehicle quality. We also believe that we have the ability, through our access to capital, to
continue to add service capacity and increase revenues. During 2006, we added 163 service stalls, or 5.0%, to our
overall stall capacity In addition, manufacturers continue to extend new vehicle warranty periods and have also
begun to include regular maintenance items in the warranty coverage. These factors, combined with the extended
manufacturer warrantics on CPQ vehicles (see the discussion in “Business Strategy-—Certified Pre-Owned
Vehicles” above), should facilitate continued growth in our service and parts business.

Parts revenue is driven by the mix of warranty repairs versus customer pay repairs as prices for warranty
parts are established by the manufacturer. We believe that long-term trends in retail parts sales will be affected
by the same trends as discussed above for service (additional capacity, customer satisfaction, etc.).

As of December 31, 2006, we operated 37 collision repair centers. Collision revenues are heavily impacted
by trends in the automotive insurance industry. Over the last few years, collision repair revenues have either
declined or remained flat because customers are choosing higher deductible policies, thus choosing not to make
minor repairs that were previously covered by lower deductible policies. In addition, when insurance companies
declare a vehicle “totaled”, the model year of that vehicle often determines where it is repaired. Late model
vehicles tend to be repaired at franchised dealership body shops, while older vehicles tend to be repaired at stand-
alone collision centers.

For the Year Ended $ % For the Year Ended $ o
12/31/2005  12/31/2006 Change Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 Change Change

Total Parts, Service and Collision
Repair (in thousands)

Same Store .. ................ $981,731 51032527 § 50,796 52% $865,839 $908,062  § 42,223 4.9%
Adquisitions and Other ........ 6,701 82,343 75.642 1128.83% 13,337 80,370 67033  502.6%
Total as Reported ........... $988,432  $1,114,870 §$126,438 12.8% $879,176 $988.432  $109,256 12.4%

Same store Fixed Operations revenues increased during 2006, primarily due to the performance of our
import dealerships fup $55.7 million, or 8.2%) outpacing decreases in our domestic dealerships (down
$5.8 million, or 2.0%). Customer pay sales at our import dealerships increased $41.9 million, or 13.8%. Our
BMW dealerships experienced significant increases in Fixed Operations revenues, increasing by $22.3 million,
or 12.3%, compared to 2003 as a continued result of BMW’s vehicle maintenance programs and strong same
store new vehicle sales. These import increases were partially offset by decreases of $5.8 million, or 2.0%, at our
domestic dealerships. Warranty sales declines of $6.9 million, or 14.2%, were offset by an increase in customer
pay of $0.4 million, or 0.3%, at our domestic stores. Our GM and Cadillac dealerships, which decreased
$2.5 million, or 2.4%, and $3.7 million, or 3.1%, respectively, as compared to 2005 contributed to lower
domestic sales. The declines in our GM dealerships were primarily caused by a decrease in warranty repair
services and wholesale parts sales of $8.9 million, or 13.2%. Warranty sales at our Cadillac stores experienced
declines of $3.4 million, or 14.3%, as compared to 2005.

Same store Fixed Operations revenues increased during 2005 compared to 2004, primarily due to the
performance of our import dealerships (up $42.0 million, or 7.4%) outpacing decreases in our domestic
dealerships (down $0.9 million, or 0.3%). Warranty sales at our import dealerships increased $1.9 million, or
1.4%. Our BMW dealerships experienced significant increases in Fixed Operations revenues, increasing by
$18.4 million, or 12.9%, compared to 2004 as a continued result of BMW’s vehicle maintenance programs and
strong same store new vehicle sales. In addition, our BMW stores posted increases in warranty sales of
$3.0 million, or 6.7%. These import increases were partially offset by decreases in warranty sales at our domestic
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dealerships, which declined $2.0 million, or 3.9%, compared to 2004. The overall domestic dealership Fixed
Operations revenue declines primarily relate to our Cadillac dealerships, which decreased $3.0 million, or 2.5%
as compared to 2004. Warranty sales at our Cadillac stores experienced declines of $2.3 million, or 8.8%, as
compared to 2004.

Finance, Insurance and Other

Finance, insurance and other revenues include commissions for arranging vehicle financing and insurance,
sales of third-party extended service contracts for vehicles and other aftermarket products. In connection with
vehicle financing, service contracts, other aftermarket products and insurance contracts, we receive a commission
from the provider for originating the contract.

Rate spread is another term for the commission earned by our dealerships for arranging vehicle financing for
consumers. The amount of the commission could be zero, a flat fee or an actual spread between the interest rate
charged to the consumer and the interest rate provided by the direct financing source (bank, credit union or
manufacturers’ captive finance company). We have established caps on the potential rate spread our dealerships
can earn with all finance sources. We believe the rate spread we earn for arranging financing represents value to
the consumer in numerous ways, including the following;

* Lower cost, sub-vented financing is often available only from the manufacturers’ captives and
franchised dealers;

* Lease-financing alternatives are largety available only from manufacturers’ captives or other indirect
lenders;

¢ Customers with substandard credit frequently do not have direct access to potential sources of sub-prime
financing; and

* Customers with significant “negative equity” in their current vehicle (i.e., the customer’s current vehicle
is worth less than the balance of their vehicle loan or lease obligation) frequently are unable to pay off
the loan on their current vehicle and finance the purchase or lease of a replacement new or used vehicle
without the assistance of a franchised dealer.

Finance, insurance and other revenues are driven by the level of new and used vehicle sales, manufacturer
financing or leasing incentives and our penetration rate, The penetration rate represents the percentage of vehicle
sales on which we are able to originate financing or sell extended service contracts, other aftermarket products or
insurance contracts. Our finance penetration rate decreased slightly 10 67.6% in 2006 from 68.1% in 2005. Our
extended service contract penetration rate increased to 34.7% in 2006 from 34.3% in 2005. We expect our
finance and insurance penetration rate to increase over time as we continue to emphasize the use of menu selling
techniques.

For the Year Ended $ % For the Year Ended $ %
12/31/2005  12/31/2006 Change Change 12/31/2004 12/31/2005 Change Change

Total Finance, Insurance and Other
Revenue (in thousands)

Same Store .................. .. $176,435 $181,386 % 4,951 2.8% $157.888 $169.078 311,190 T1%
Acquisitions and Other ... ..., ... 4,693 10,002 5,309 113.1% 7,531 12,050 4519 60.0%
Total as Reported . ............ 181,128 $191,388  $10,260 57% $165.419 5181,128  $15.709 9.5%
Total F&I per Unit {excluding fleet)
Same Store .................... $ 911 $ 915 3% 4 04% § 889 $ 906 % 17 1.9%
Total Dealerships as Reported . . . ., $ 932 $ 922 % (M (1L.1%) $ 924 $ 932 3§ 8 0.9%

Same store finance, insurance and other revenues increased during 2006 when compared (o 20035 due to a
2.7% increase in retail vehicle unit sales volume. Qur import dealerships reported an increase of revenues by
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$ 4.5 million, or 3.6%, primarily due to revenue increases in our Toyota, Mercedes, and Lexus dealerships of
$3.2 million, or 11.8%, $1.0 million, or 14.2%, and $0.8 million, or 10.5%. respectively. Qur domestic stores
also experienced a slight increase in revenues of $0.5 million, or 0.9%. The increase was led by our Cadillac and
GM stores of $0.5 million, or 4.1%, and $0.2 million, or 0.8%, respectively. The revenue increase was partially
offset by a $6.2 million increase in our allowance for estimated finance chargebacks that was recorded in the
second quarter ended June 30, 2006 as a result of a change in estimate for the allowance.

Same store finance, insurance, and other revenues increased in 2005 compared to 2004 due w0 a 59%
increase in retail unit sales volume. The increase in revenues was primarily attributed to our import stores with an
$11.7 million, or 11.1% increase over 2004, Our Honda, BMW, and Lexus dealerships led the rise in revenues
with increases of $6.0 million, or 20.3%, $1.9 million, or 10,.9%, and $1.3 million, or 20.0%, respectively. The
increase at our import stores was slightly offset by a decrease of $0.9 million or 1.6% at our domestic stores, due
to a decline in new and used retail units sold of 3.9% and 0.9%, respectively. The domestic decline was partially
offset by our GM stores (excluding Cadillac), which experienced increases of $0.3 million, or 1.4%.

Gross Profit and Gross Margins

The cost of sales line item includes the cost of new and used vehicles, vehicle parts and all costs directly
linked to servicing customer vehicles (labor for parts, service and collision repair associates, depreciation on
service equipment and service consumables). Qur overall gross profit and gross margin (gross profit as a
percentage of revenues) as a percentage of revenues generally vary depending on changes in our revenue mix,
Although sales of new vehicles comprise the majority of our total revenues, new vehicles generally carry the
lowest margin rate of any product or service we offer. As a resolt, sales of new vehicles comprise a relatively
small portion of total gross profits when compared to revenue. Retail sales of used vehicles generally carry a
slightly higher gross margin rate than new vehicles. Parts, service and collision repair carry a much higher gross
margin rate than vehicle sales. Product mix also has an impact on the gross margins that we realize. Historically,
our import and luxury brands provide higher margins than our domestic brands. As we continue to acquire more
import and luxury dealerships, we would expect our gross margins to increase. Our same store revenue mix
between different products is shown in the following table:

For the Year Ended Basis Point For the Year Ended Basis Point
12/31/2005  12/3172006 Change 12/3172004 1243172005 Change

Revenues as a Percentage of Total Revenues

New Vehicles ... 61.9% 61.7% {20} 61.8% 62.1% 30
Used Vehicles . ... ... ... i i 15.6% 16.2% 60 15.7% 15.6% {1
Wholesale Vehicles ......................... 6.4% 5.8% (60) 6.3% 6,4% 10
Fixed Operations . ....... ... ... . ....... 13.6% 13.8% 20 13.6% 13.4% 20
Finance, Insurance and Other . .. ............... 2.5% 2.5% 0 2.6% 2.5% (10}
Totalas Reported ......................... 100.0% 1H0.0% — 100.0% 1L0% —
For the Year Ended $ % For the Year Ended %

12/31/2005  12/31/2006  Change  Change  12/31/2004  12/31/2005  Change  Change

Total Gross Profit (in thousands)

Same Store . .. ... $1.106,963  $1,156,086 % 49,123 44% $973,704 51038561 § 64.857 6.7%

Acquisitions and Other ........ 10,082 75,496 65414 648.5% 18,550 TR.484 59.934 323.1%

Total as Reported ........... $1.117,045 $1.231,582  $114,537 10.3%  $992254  $1.117.045 3124791 12.6%
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The overall gross margin rates on our various revenue lines on a same store basis were as follows:

For the Year Ended Basis Point For the Year Ended Basis Point
12/3172005  12/31/2006 Change 12/31/2004 1273172005 Change

Newwvehicles........................ 71.3% 7.3% — 7.4% 7.3% (109
Usedvehicles ....................... 10.6% 10.3% 30 10.3% 10.8% 50
Wholesale vehicles ................... (0.4%) (1.1%) (70 (1.3%) (0.5%) 80
Parts, service and collision repair . ... .. .. 49.5% 49.9% 40 49.4% 49.6% 20
Finance and insurance ................ 100.0%  100.0% — 100.0%  100.0% —
Overall gross margin ................. 15.4% 15.4% — 15.3% 15.3% —

Our same store gross margin percentage was flat in 2006, when compared to 2005. Gross margin
improvements experienced in Fixed Operations were offset by declines in both the used and wholesale vehicle
gross margin percentages. Our Toyota dealerships posted the most significant increase in Fixed Operations gross
margin percentage among our import dealerships, improving by 130 basis points. In addition, the majority of our
domestic dealerships contributed to the Fixed Operations increase. Specifically, our GM (excluding Cadillac),
Ford and Cadillac dealerships experienced Fixed Operations margin increases of 80 basis points, 40 basis points
and 30 basis points, respectively, when compared to 2005.

The overall same store gross margin percentage remained flat at 15.3% in 2005 and 2004. Improvements
experienced in all other categories were offset by a 10 basis point decline in the new vehicle gross margin
percentage. The largest increases in margin percentage related to used and wholesale vehicles, which were
primarily attributed to price increases driven by a lower supply of higher quality used vehicles than in previous
years. Fixed Operations gross margin percentages improved primarily due to a 240 basis point increase
experienced at our Ford dealerships.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, general and administrative (“SG&A™) expenses are comprised of four major groups: compensation
expense, advertising expense, rent and rent related expense, and other expense. Compensation expense primarily
relates to dealership personnel who are paid a commission or a modest salary plus commission (which typically
vary depending on gross profits realized) and support personnel who are paid a fixed salary. Due to the salary
component for certain dealership and corporate personnel, gross profits and compensation expense are not 100%
correlated. Advertising expense and other expenses vary based on the level of actual or anticipated business
activity and number of dealerships owned. Rent and rent related expense typically varies with the number of
dealerships owned, investments made for facility improvements and interest rates. Although not completely
correlated, we believe the best way to measure SG&A expenses is as a percentage of gross profit.

Total SG&A expenses increased $89.4 million, or 10.5%, in 2006 compared to 2005. As a percentage of
gross profit, reported SG&A expense increased by 20 basis points, from 76.1% in 2005 to 76.3% in 2006. These
increases, both the dollar increase and the increase as a percentage of gross profits, can be attributed to current
year acquisitions, a number of charges recorded during 2006 and the effect of a $3.0 million favorable legal
settlement in 2005, Acquisitions in 2006 contributed $39.0 million to the year over year dollar increase. The
charges recorded in 2006 included property and equipment impairment charges and other asset write-offs of
approximately $7.9 million, which represent a 70 basis point increase in SG&A as a percentage of gross profit. In
addition, legal accruals of $2.0 million and lease exit accruals of $2.0 million were recorded during 2006, each
representing a 20 basis point increase in SG&A as a percentage of gross profit, respectively. Finance reserve
chargeback accruals of $6.2 million recorded in the second quarter of 2006 also negatively affected the
percentage of SG&A to gross profit in 2006 by 40 basis points. [n 2005, reported SG&A expense as a percentage
of gross profit improved by 170 basis points, when compared to 2004.
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Total reported compensation expense increased $44.0 million, or 8.8%, in 2006, as compared to 2005 due to
acquistions and higher gross profit levels. As a percentage of gross profit, total compensation expense improved
by 60 basis points to 44.1% in 2006 from 44.7% in 2005. In 2005, total reported compensation expense increased
by $45.8 million, or 10.1%, when compared to 2004, while decreasing by 100 basis points as a percentage of
gross profit from 45.7% in 2004 to 44.7% in 2005. The decline as a percentage of gross profit was due to
standardized pay plans implemented in 2004, tying compensation more closely with gross profit.

Advertising expense increased $5.6 million, or 9.5%, in 2006, as compared to 2005. Of this increase,
$3.3 million was due to acquisitions. The remaining increase in advertising expense can be attributed to a
targeted approach to allocate advertising dollars to certain brands in key markets, which was implemented in
2005. Despite the dollar increase, the advertising expense to gross profit ratio declined by 10 basis points to 5.2%
in 2006 from 5.3% in 2005. In 2005, advertising expense increased $5.2 million, or 9.7%, when compared to
2004, while also improving by 10 basis points as a percentage of gross profit.

Rent and rent related expenses increased $22.8 million, or 19.1%, in 2006, as compared to 2005. As a
percentage of gross profit, rent and rent related expenses increased by 80 basis points to 11.5% in 2006 from
10.7% in 2005. Acquisitions contributed $5.9 million to the increase. We also experienced increases in rent
expense as a result of the completion of facility improvement projects and the resulting sale-leaseback of these
facilities, the effect of rising interest rates on our variable rate leases and the establishment of lease exit accruals.
In 2005, rent and rent related expenses increased $16.7 million, or 16.3%, as compared to 2004. The majority of
the increase was due to acquisitions, new facilities and improvements on existing facilities.

Other SG&A expenses increased $17.0 million, or 9.8%, in 2006, as compared to 2005. Acquisitions
accounted for approximately $9.3 million of the increase. The remaining increase is primarily attributed to higher
service loaner expense, data processing, legal expenses and impairment charges. In 2003, other SG&A expenses
increased $10.7 million, or 6.6%, as compared to 2004,

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation expense increased $5.0 million, or 27.3%, in 2006 compared to 2005. This increase was due
primarily to a $72.1 million increase in gross property and equipment related to continuing operations, excluding
land and construction in progress, as well as an adjustment to depreciation ¢xpense of $2.1 million which was
recorded in the year ended December 31, 2006. This adjustment was related to the reclassification of certain
assets from other current assets—construction in progress to depreciable property and equipment based on
strategic capital decisions which resulted in decisions not to sell these assets. The increase in depreciable
property was due to dealership acquisitions and facility projects on existing dealerships.

Depreciation expense increased $4.0 million, or 27.5%, in 2005 compared to 2004, This increase was due
primarily to a $21.9 million increase in gross property and equipment related to continuing operations, excluding
land and construction in progress. The increase in depreciable property was due to dealership acquisitions and
facility projects on existing dealerships.

Interest Expense, Floor Plan

Interest expense, floor plan for new vehicles increased $19.2 million, or 54.2%, in 2006 compared to 2003,
The average new vehicle floor plan interest rate related to new vehicles incurred by continuing dealerships was
5.9% for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to 4.3% for the year ended December 31, 2005, which
increased interest expense by approximately $13.4 million. In addition, during 2006 the average floor plan
balance for new vehicles increased by $98.8 million, resulting in an increase in expense of approximately
$5.8 million. Approximately $27.3 million of the increase in the average floor plan balance for new vehicles was
due to additional dealerships we acquired in 2006. The average floor plan balance for new vehicles also increased
due to an increase in the average price of vehicles due to general trends in the industry and our continued focus
on luxury vehicles.
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Interest expense, floor plan for used vehicles increased expense in 2006 by $4.9 million. The floor plan
interest expense associated with used vehicles was the result of borrowings under the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor
Plan Sub-Facility (see Note 6 in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements). The average balance of
the Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility was $100.9 million in 2006 and bore an interest rate of between 5.7%
and 6.5%. This facility was not in place in 2005.

Interest expense, floor plan for new vehicles increased $13.2 million, or 59.3%, in 2005 compared to 2004.
The average floor plan interest rate for new vehicles incurred by continuing dealerships was 4.3% for the year
ended December 31, 2005, compared to 2.8% for the year ended December 31, 2004, which increased interest
expense by approximately $11.6 million. In addition to this, during 2005 the average floor plan balance for new
vehicles increased $38.7 million which resulted in an increase in expense of approximately $1.6 million.
Approximately $24.6 miltion of the increase in the average new vehicle floor plan balance was due to additional
dealerships we acquired in 2005.

Our floor plan expenses related to new vehicles are partially offset by amounts received from manufacturers
in the form of floor plan assistance. These payments are credited against our cost of sales upon the sale of the
vehicle. For franchises classified as continuing operations, the amounts we recognized in our Consolidated
Income Statements from floor plan assistance exceeded our floor plan interest expense by approximately
$9.5 million in 2004, In 2005 and 2006 our floor plan interest expense exceeded our floor plan assistance by
$2.0 million and $22.8 miilion, respectively.

Interest Expense, Other, Net

See discussion in Liguidity and Capital Resources regarding the new credit facility and the changes in
related interest rates compared to our previous revolving credit facility.

In order to reduce our exposure to market risks from fluctvations in interest rates, we had two separate
interest rate swap agreements (the “Fixed Swaps™) to effectively convert a portion of cur LIBOR-based variable
rate debt to a fixed rate. The first swap agreement matured October 31, 2004 and had a notional principal amount
of $100.0 million. The second swap agreement matured June 6, 2006 and had a notional principal of
$100.0 miliion. Under the terms of the first swap agreement, we received interest payments on the notional
amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate and made interest payments at a fixed rate of 3.88%. Under
the terms of the second swap agreement, we received interest payments on the notional amount at a rate equal to
the one month LIBOR rate, and made interest payments at a fixed rate of 4.50%. The incremental expense
incurred (the difference between interest paid and interest received as a result of the Fixed Swaps) was
$5.4 million and $1.2 million in 2004 and 2005, respectively. A benefit of $0.1 million was realized in 2006, The
incremental expenses/benefits of the Fixed Swaps are included in interest expense, other, net in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

In 2003, we entered into five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million (collectively, the *Old
Variable Swaps™) to effectively convert a portion of our fixed rate debt to a LIBOR-based variable rate debt.
Under the Old Variable Swaps’ agreements, we received 8.625% on the respective notional amounts and paid
interest payments on the respective notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month LIBOR in arrears (as
determined on February 15 and August 15 of each year) plus a spread ranging from 3.50% to 3.84% with a
weighted average spread of 3.64%. In the second quarter of 2005, we canceled all of the Old Variable Swaps.
The Old Variable Swaps had a collective mark-to-market of $0.4 million at cancellation. In connection with this
cancellation, we entered into five separate new interest rate swaps with identical terms to the Old Variable Swaps
except that we pay a variable rate equal to the fixed six month LIBOR rate which will be fixed on February 15
and August 15 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% to 3.85% (with a weighted average spread of
3.83%) (collectively, the “New Variable Swaps™). The benefit realized (the difference between interest paid and
interest received) as a result of the Old and New Variable Swaps was $4.2 million and $1.5 million in 2004 and
20035, respectively, and $0.4 million of expense in 2006, The incremental expenses/benefits of the Old and New
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Variable swaps are included in interest expense, other, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income.

These changes and other changes in other interest expense are summarized in the schedule below:

2003 2006

Increase/(Decrease)  Increase/(Decrease)
in Interest Expense  in Interest Expense

(in millions) (in millions)
Interest rates —
» Changes in the average intcrest rate on the revolving facilities
(4.14% in 2004, 5.94% in 2005 and 6.81% in 2006) ........... $ 6.0 $ 22
» Rate spread benefit due to repayment of revolving credit facilities
with proceeds from 4.23% Convertible Notes issuance ......... 0.0 {1.4)
Debt balances —
* Increase/(Decrease) in debt balances ....................... (1.3) (3.6)
Other factors —
+  Decrease/(increase) in capitalized interest ................... 0.5 {1.3)
* Incremental interest savings related to the Fixed Swaps . ...... . 4.2) (1.3)
+ Incremental interest expense related to the Old and New Variable
SWaPS e 2.6 1.9
* Increase in otherexpense, net ....... ... ... ... ... ... ... .. 04 0.9
39 $(2.6)

Other Income / Expense, Net

Other income / expense increased approximately $0.6 million in 2006 compared to 2005 due mostly to fees
related to the termination of the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective tax rate from continuing operations was 40.4% in 2006 and 37.4% in 2005. The effective rate
from continuing operations decreased in 2005 to 37.4% from 38.0% in 2004. The effective rate in 2006 was
higher than 2005 primarily due to the effect of adjustments in certain tax planning strategies and due to the shift
of taxable income to states with higher tax rates in 2006. We expect the effective tax rate in future periods to fall
within a range of 37 % to 39 %.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

‘We require cash to finance acquisitions and fund debt service and working capital requirements. We rely on
cash flows from operations, borrowings under our 2006 Credit Facility and offerings of debt and equity securities
to meet these requirements.

Because the majority of our consolidated assets are held by our dealership subsidiaries, the majority of our
cash flows from operations are generated by these subsidiaries. As a result, our cash flows and ability to service
debt depends to a substantial degree on the results of operations of these subsidiaries and their ability to provide
us with cash based on their ability to generate cash. Uncertainties in the economic environment as well as
uncertainties associated with the ultimate resolution of geopolitical conflicts may therefore affect our overall
liquidity.
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A significant portion of our cash flow is used to fund dealership acquisitions. Following is a summary of
acquisition activity in recent years:

(in millions)

Cash
Portion
of Purchase
Subsequent Price
Year (net of cash
Acquisitions Revenues acquired)
200 e $362.7 $113.6
200 589.4 268.7
200 4489 138.8
2000 () i e e 250.8 1104

{a) Revenues are estimated

Prior to 2004, we had maintained a long-term debt to total capital ratio of approximately 48% to 52%
depending on the timing of our dealership acquisitions. We expect our acquisition activity to approximate 10% to
15% of annual revenues each year and 2007 activily to be weighted toward the latter half of the year. We believe
it prudent to maintain our long-term debt to total capital ratio of 35% to 40% over the next few vyears. At
December 31, 2006, our long-term debt to total capital ratio net of cash and cash equivalents was 39.4%. Our
long-term debt structure consists of the 2006 Credit Facility due in 2010 and various senior subordinated notes
due or redeemable in 2009, 2010, 2013 and 2015. These are discussed in more detail below. We believe the
combination of cash flows from operations, floor plan facilities, the availability under our 2006 Credit Facility
{approximately $252.1 million was available under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility at December 31,
2006) and our ability to raise funds in the public capital markets is sufficient to fund both our working capital
needs and the targeted acquisition level discussed above.

Long-Term Debt and Credit Facilities
2006 Credit Facility

On February 17, 2006, we entered into a new four-year syndicated credit facility (the “2006 Credit
Facility”) with 14 financial institutions, including three manufacturer-affiliated finance companies, providing for
up to $1.2 billion in revolving credit and floor plan financing. The 2006 Credit Facility replaces the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, (which was terminated February 17, 2006) and a portion of our existing
floor plan financing arrangements.

The 2006 Credit Facility has a borrowing limit of $1.2 billion, which may be expanded up to $1.45 billion in
total credit availability upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility, up to
$700.0 million is available for new vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility™), up to $150.0 million is available for used vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility™) and up to $350.0 million is available for working capital and general corporate
purposes {the “2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility”). The amount available for borrowing under the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the aggregate face amount of any
outstanding letters of credit under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. The 2006 Revolving Credit
Sub-Facility matures on February 17, 2010. The 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Fucility and the 2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility mature on the earlier of February 17, 2010 or upon demand by the administrative
agent at the request of more than 80% of the lenders under those facilities.

At December 31, 2006, our 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility had a borrowing limit of $350.0 million,
subject to a borrowing base calculated on the basis of our receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of
certain additional collateral by one of our affiliates (the borrowing base exceeded the borrowing limit at
December 31, 2006). The amount available to be borrowed under the Revolving Credit Facility is reduced on a
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dollar-for-dollar basis by the cumulative face amount of outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2006, we
had $77.8 million in letters of credit outstanding and $252.1 miilion of borrowing availability.

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bear interest at a specified
percentage above LIBOR according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by our Total Senior Secured
Debt to EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the
performance-based pricing grid is from 1.75% above LIBOR to 2.75% above LIBOR. The weighted average rate
of the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility during the year ended December 31, 2006 was 6.81%. In addition,
there is a quarterly commitment fee payable by us on the unused portion of the 2006 Revolving Credit
Sub-Facility according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by our Total Senior Secured Debt to
EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the performance-
based pricing grid for the quarterly commitment fee is .20% to 0.45% on the unused portion of the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility.

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.00% above
LIBOR. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.125%
above LIBOR. In addition, there are quarterly commitment fees of 0.20% payable by us on the unused portion of
both the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility.

Under the terms of collateral documents entered into with the lenders under the 2006 Credit Facility,
outstanding balances under the 2006 Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of substantially all of our assets and
the assets of substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries, which domestic subsidiaries also guarantee our
obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, and the pledge of certain additional collateral by onc of our affiliates.
The collateral for the New Credit Facility also includes the pledge of the stock or equity interests of our
dealership franchise subsidiaries, except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable vehicle
manufacturer.

We agreed under the 2006 Credit Facility not to pledge any assets to any third party, subject to certain stated
exceptions, including floor plan financing arrangements. In addition, the 2006 Credit Facility contains certain
negative covenants, including covenants which could restrict or prohibit the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures and material dispositions of assets as well as other customary covenants and default provisions,
Specifically, the 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends on our Class A and Class B common stock so long
as no event of default or unmatured default (as defined in the New Credit Facility) has occurred and is continuing
and provided that, after giving effect to the payment of a dividend, we remain in compliance with other terms and
conditions of the 2006 Credit Facility.

The 2006 Credit Facility contains events of default, including cross-defaults to other material indebtedness,
change of control events and events of default customary for syndicated commercial credit facilities. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default, we could be required to immediately repay all outstanding amounts under the
2006 Credit Facility.

On February 17, 2006, in conjunction with the entrance into the 2006 Credit Facility, we and substantially
all of our domestic subsidiaries entered into collateral documents with the lenders, pursuant to which we and
substantially all of our domestic subsidiaries granted a security interest in substantially all their assets to secure
our obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, including a pledge of the stock or equity interests of our
dealership franchise subsidiaries except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable vehicle
manufacturer. This grant of security interests replaces the grant under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as
amended.

2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as Amended

Prior to entering into the 2006 Credit Facility, we utilized the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended.
This facility was with Ford Credit, DaimlerChrysler Financial, Toyota Financial, Bank of America, JP Morgan
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Chase Bank and Merrill Lynch and had a borrowing limit of $550.0 million, subject to a borrowing base
calculated on the basis of receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of certain additional collateral by
one of our affiliates. The amounts outstanding under the Revolving Facility bore interest at 2.55 percentage
points above LIBOR. The Revolving Facility included an annual commitment fee equal to 0.25% of the unused
portion of the Revolving Facility.

Senior Subordinated 8.625% Notes

In August 2003, we issued $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.625% Notes. In November
2003, we issued an additional $75.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the 8.625% Notes. This
$75.0 million issuance contains the same provisions and terms as the $200.0 million issuance. The 8.625% Notes
are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior subordinated
indebtedness, mature on August 15, 2013 and are redeemable at our option after August 15, 2008. The
redemption premiums for the twelve-month periods beginning August 15 of the years 2008, 2009 and 2010 are
104.313%, 102.875% and 101.438%, respectively. In addition, up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount of
the 8.625% Notes may be redeemed on or before August 15, 2006 with net cash proceeds from certain equity
offerings. Our obligations under the 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by our operating domestic subsidiaries.

We have five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million to effectively convert a portion of our
fixed rate debt under the 8.625% Notes to a LIBOR-based variable rate debt. See Note | to our Consolidated
Financial Statements and “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate Risk™. If
the Standard & Poor’s or Moody’s Investor Services rating on our 8.625% Notes drops to “B” or “B2",
respectively, or is withdrawn, the counterparty for $125.0 million of the total interest rate swap notional value of
$150.0 million has the option to terminate their interest rate swaps with us. If this counterparty terminates these
options, the mark-to-market value of these interest rate swaps must be paid by either us or the counterparty.
Further, if the counterparty terminates, it is likely that we will be required to pay the mark-to-market value of
these interest rate swaps. Additionally, if such a termination occurs, the fair value of $125.0 million of our
8.625% Notes will no longer be hedged.

Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In May 2002, we issued $149.5 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible senior subordinated
notes (“2002 Convertibles”) with net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $145.1 million. The 2002
Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our existing and future senior
subordinated indebtedness, mature on May 7, 2009 and are redeemable at our option ufter May 7, 2005. The
redemption premiums for the twelve-month periods beginning May 7 of the years 20035, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are
103.00%. 102.25%, 101.50% and 100.75%, respectively. OQur obligations under the 2002 Convertibles are not
guaranteed by any of our subsidiaries. The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of Class A common
stock, at the option of the holder, based on certain conditions. See Note 6§ to our Consolidated Financial
Statements for a discussion regarding these conversion conditions. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements”
below for a discussion regarding the off-balance sheet aspects of this financing. None of the conversion features
on the 2002 Convertibles were triggered in 2006 and none of the 2002 Convertibles were redeemed in 2006.

In November and December 2005, we issued $160.0 million in aggregate principal amount of convertible
senior subordinated notes (“2005 Convertibles”) with net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately
$156.2 million. The 2005 Convertibles bear interest at an annual rate of 4.25% until November 30, 2010 and
4.75% thereafter. The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under our 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, and to pay the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions. The 2005 Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all of our
existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on November 30, 2015 and are redeemable on or
after October 31, 2010. Our obligations under the 2005 Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of our
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subsidiaries. Holders of the 2005 Convertibles may convert them into cash and shares of our Class A common
stock based on certain conditions. Upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, we will be required to deliver cash
equal to the lesser of the aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted or our total
conversion obligation. If our total conversion obligation exceeds the aggregate principal amount of the 2005
Convertibles being converted, we will deliver shares of our Class A common stock to the extent of the excess
amount, if any. We used $18.5 million of the net proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Convertibles to pay the net
cost of convertible note hedge and warrant transactions. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for
a discussion regarding these conversion conditions. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” below for a
discussion regarding the off-balance sheet aspects of this financing and the convertible note hedge and warrant
transactions. None of the conversion features on the 2005 Convertibles were triggered in 2006.

Notes Payable to a Finance Company

Three notes payable totaling $26.6 million in aggregate principal were assumed with the purchase of certain
dealerships during the second quarter of 2004 (the “Assumed Notes”). The Assumed Notes bear interest rates
from 9.52% to 10.52% (with a weighted average of 10.19%), have a combined monthly principal and interest
payment of $0.3 million, mature November 1, 2015 through September 1, 2016 and are collateralized by letters
of credit. We recorded the Assumed Notes at fair value using an interest rate of 5.35%. The interest rate used to
calculate the fair value was based on a quoted market price for notes with similar terms as of the date of
assumption. As a result of calculating the fair value, a premium of $7.3 million was recorded that will be
amortized over the lives of the Assumed Notes. Although the Assumed Notes allow for prepayment, the penalties
and fees are disproportionately burdensome relative to the Assumed Notes’ principal balance. Therefore, we do
not currently intend to prepay the Assumed Notes.

The Mortgage Facility

We had approximately $100 million of borrowing availability related to a revolving real estate and
construction (the “Construction Loan™) and mortgage refinancing (the “Permanent Loan™) line of credit with
Toyota Credit (collectively, the “Mortgage Facility”). Subsequent to December 31, 2006, this line of credit was
terminated. There were no borrowings outstanding during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006.

Floor Plan Facilities

We finance all of our new and certain of our used vehicle inventory through standardized floor plan
facilities. These floor plan facilities bear interest at variable rates based on prime and LIBOR. The weighted
average interest rate for our floor plan facilities was 4.4% for 2005 and 6.0% for 2006. Our floor plan interest
expense is partially offset by amounts received from manufacturers, in the form of floor plan assistance. Floor
plan assistance received is capitalized in inventory and charged against cost of sales when the associated
inventory is sold. In 2006, we recognized approximately $42.2 million in manufacturer assistance, which resulted
in an effective borrowing rate under the floor plan facilities of approximately 2.3%. Interest payments under each
of our floor plan facilities are due monthly and we are generally not required to make principal repayments prior
to the sale of the vehicles.

Prior to February 17. 2006, we engaged in financing our new vehicle inventory with DaimlerChrysler
Financial Company, LLC (“DaimlerChrysler Financial”), Ford Motor Credit Company (“Ford Credit”), General
Motors Acceptance Corporation (“GMAC”), Toyota Financial Services (“Toyota Financial”), Bank of America
and JP Morgan Chase Bank. On February 17, 2006 and shortly thereafter, we also entered into or renewed
separate floor plan credit arrangements with DaimlerChrysler Services North America LLC, Ford Motor Credit
Company, General Motors Acceptance Corporation and BMW Financial Services NA, LLC. These separate floor
plan credit facilities provide a total of approximately $617.0 million of availability to finance new vehicle
inventory purchased from the respective manufacturer affiliates of these captive finance companies and
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$150.0 million of availability to finance used vehicle inventory. Each of these separate-floor plan facilities bear
interest at variable rates based on prime and LIBOR. Our obligation under each of these separate floor plan
facilities are secured, or will be secured, by liens on all of the new.vehicle inventory financed under the
respective floor plan credit facility, as well as the proceeds from the sale of such vehicles, and certain other
collateral. '

Covenants and Default Provisions

Noncompliance with covenants, including a failure to make any payment when due, under our 2006 Credit
Facility, floor plan facilities, 8,625% Notes, 2002 Convertibles and 2005 Convertibles (collectively, our
“Material Debt Agreements”) could result in a default and an acceleration of our repayment obligation under our
2006 Credit Facility. A default under our New Credit Facility would constitute a default under our floor plan
facilities and could entitle these lenders 10 accelerate our repayment obligations under the one or more of the
floor plan facilities. A default under our 2006 Credit Facility and one or more floor plan facilities would not
result in a default under our 8.625% Notes, 2002 Convertibles or 2005 Convertibles unless our repayment
obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, Mortgage Facility and/or one or more of the floor plan facilities were
accelerated. An acceleration of our repayment obligation under any of our Material Debt Agreements could result
in an acceleration of our repayment obligations under our other Material Debt Agreements. We expect to be in
compliance with the covenants for ail of our long-term debt agreements for the foreseeable future. We were in
compliance with all of the restrictive and financial covenants on all of our floor plan and long-term debt facilities
required to be submitted as of and for the period ended December 31, 2006. The 2006 Credit Facility includes the
following financial covenants:

’

Covenant kequired
Consolidated liquidity ratio ....... ... ... >1.15
Consolidated fixed charge coverageratio ................................ =1.20
Consolidated total senior secured debt to EBITDAratio . ... ................. <225

Acquisitions and Dispositions

During 2006, we acquired eight franchises for a combined purchase price of $110.4 million in cash. The
cash utilized for these acquisitions was financed by cash generated from our existing operations and by
borrowings under our revolving credit facilitics. During 2006, we disposed of 12 franchises. These disposals
generated cash of $51.0 million.

In January 2007, we purchased two franchises for $16.5 million in cash.

Sale-Leaseback Transactions

In an effort to generate additional cash flow, we penodlcally seek to minimize the ownership of real
property. As a result, facilities either constructed by us or obtained in acquisitions are sold to third parties in sale-
leaseback transactions. The resulting leases generally have initial terms of 10-20 years and include a series of
five- -year renewal options. We have no continuing obligations under these arrangements other than lease
payments. In 2006, we sold $26.6 million in dealership property and equipment in sale-leaseback transactions.
There were no material gains or losses on these sales.

Capital Expendztures

Our capital expenditures mclude the construction of new dealerships and collision repair centers, building
improvements and equipment purchased for use in our dealerships. Capital expenditures in 2006 were
approximately’ $99.8 million, of which approximately $66.0 million related to the construction of new
dealerships and collision repair centers and real estate acquired in connection with such construction. Once
completed, these new dealerships and collision repair -centers are either. held or sold in sale-leaseback
transactions. New dealership and collision repair center capital expenditures incurred during 2006 expected to be
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sold within a year or sold in 2006 in sale-leaseback transactions were $40.5 million. We do not expect any
significant gains or losses from these sales. As of December 31, 2006, commitments for facilities construction
projects totaled approximately $13.4 million. We expect $7.8 million of this amount to be financed through
future sale-leaseback transactions.

Stock Repurchase Program

Our Board of Directors has authorized us to expend up to $185.0 million to repurchase shares of our Class A
common stock or redeem securities convertible into Class A common stock. In 2006, we repurchased 584,000
shares for approximately $15.1 million which was offset by proceeds received from the exercise of stock options
under stock compensation plans of $19.2 million. As of December 31, 2006 we had $12.2 million remaining
under our Board authorization.

Dividends

Our Board of Directors approved four quarterly cash dividends totaling $0.48 per share during 2006. On
February 27, 2007, our Board of Directors approved a dividend of $.12 per share for shareholders of record on
March 15, 2007 that will be paid on April 15, 2007. We intend to pay dividends in the future based on available
cash flows, covenant compliance and other factors. See Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a
description of restrictions on the payment of dividends.

Cash Flows

Since the majority of our inventories are tinanced through floor plan notes payable and a significant portion
of our receivables represent contracts in transit which are typically funded within ten days of the sale of the
vehicle, we are not required to make significant investments in working capital that would negatively impact our
operating cash flows.

In 2006, cash flows used by operations were $61.9 million. Cash used in investing activities in 2006 was
$118.0 million, the majority of which was related to dealership acquisitions and capital expenditures on
construction in progress projects offset by proceeds received from dealership dispositions and the sales of
property and equipment. Net cash provided by financing activities was $185.0 million, comprised mostly of the
increase of floor plan notes payable—non-trade offset by net payments on our revolving credit facilities.

During the third quarter of 2006, we generated cash of approximately $26.8 million from the sale of a
portion of Cornerstone’s notes receivable to a third party. This inflow of cash is included in cash flows from
operating activities, change in receivables, in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2006. This transaction resulted in no material gains or losses. The proceeds from the
sale were used to pay down our 2006 Credit Facility. Comerstone’s outstanding notes receivable at December 31,
2006 were $28.5 million, net of an allowance for credit losses of $4.9 million. We are currently evaluating
strategic alternatives for our wholly owned finance subsidiary, Cornerstone Acceptance Corporation
(“Cornerstone”), which include selling all or a portion of Comnerstone’s outstanding notes receivable. We
anticipate that proceeds from either type of sale will be used to reduce our leverage.

Our Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows includes both continuing and discontinued operations. Net cash
used in operating activities associated with discontinued operations was approximately $61.4 million and was
substantially comprised of an adjustment for depreciation, gains on the disposal of franchises and property and
equipment and changes in assets and liabilities that relate to dealership operations. In our Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows, cash flows from investing activities includes the line item “Proceeds from sale of franchises”
which is entirely related to discontinued operations. With the exception of “Proceeds from sale of franchises” in
the amount of $51.0 million and “Net payments on notes payable—floor plan—non-trade™ in the amount of
$2.2 million, cash flows from investing and financing activities contain an immaterial amount of cash flows from
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discontinued operations. Since discontinued operations typically contain unprofitable franchises, the absence of
these cash flows would generally increase consolidated cash flows from operations.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the operation and disposition of dealership franchises, we have entered into various
guarantees and indemnifications. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
regarding the guarantees and indemnifications. Also see “Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements” below for a
discussion regarding the off-balance sheet aspects of these guarantees and indemnifications.

Future Ligquidity Outlook

Our future contractual obligations are as follows:

(Amounls in thousands)

2007 2008 2009 2010 201 Thereafter Total

Floor Plan Facilities (1) ...... $1,160749 8 — § — % — 3 — % —  S$1.160,749
Long-Term Debt (2) ......... 2,707 2,842 131,353 179,777 3,051 281,604 601,334
Estimated Interest Payments on

Floor Plan Facilities (3} . ... 11,646 —_ — — — — 11,646
Estimated Interest Payments on

Long-Term Debt (4) ....... 42115 41,771 37,124 33,967 1,445 2,884 159,306
Operating Leases . .......... 129.369 121,795 110,798 108,443 111,080 832.624 1,414,109
Construction Contracts . ... ... 13,399 — — — — — 13,399
Other Purchase Obligations . .. 10,085 5,299 3,515 — — — 18.899
Acquisition Purchase

Commitments (5) ......... 16,457 — — — — — 16,457
Total ..................... $1,386.527 $171,707 $282,790 $322,187 $115,576 $1,117.112 $3,395,899

(1) Floor plan facilities includes amounts classified as liabilities associated with assets held for sale.

(2) Amounts under the 8.625% Notes and the 2002 Convertibles are redeemable at our option (see preceding
discussion regarding long-term debt and credit facilities) but have been classified in this schedule according
to contractual maturity. The 2005 Convertibles are redeemable at both our option and the option of the
holders of the 2005 Convertibles in November 2010 and have, therefore, been classified for maturity in
2010.

(3) Floor plan facilities balances (including amounts classified as liabilities associated with assets held for sale)
are correlated with the amount of vehicle inventory and are generally due at the time that a vehicle is sold.
Estimated interest payments were calculated using the December 31, 2006 floor plan facilities balance, the
weighted average interest rate for the fourth quarter of 2006 of 6.81% and the assumption that floor plan
facilities balances at December 31, 2006 would be relieved within sixty days in connection with the sale of
the associated vehicle inventory.,

(4) Estimated interest payments calculated assuming contractual maturities, no principal payments on the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility before the contractual maturity and the interest rate in effect at December 31,
2006 (7.32%) for the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. Estimated interest payments do include net
interest expense from our intercst rate swaps. See “Management's Discussion and Analvsis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Results of Operations—Interest Expense, Other, Net”, and
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk—Interest Rate Risk”, for discussion regarding
our interest rate swaps.

(5) Amount represents estimated purchase price of tangible and intangible assets net of floor plan facilities
balances.
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We believe our best source of liquidity for future growth remains cash flows generated from operations
combined with our availability of borrowings under our floor plan facilities (or any replacements thereof), our
2006 Revolving Credit Facility and our ability to raise funds in the public capital markets. Though uncertainties
in the economic environment as well as uncertainties associated with geopolitical conflicts may affect our ability
10 generate cash from operations, we expect to generate more than sufficient cash flow 1o fund our debt service
and working capital requirements and any seasonal operaling requirements, including our currently anticipated
internal growth for our existing businesses, for the foresecable future. Once these needs are met, we may use
remaining cash flow to support our acquisition strategy or repurchase shares of our Class A common stock or
publicly traded debt securities, as market conditions warrant.

Seasonality

Our operations are subject to seasonal variations. The first and fourth quarters generaily contribute less
revenue and operating profits than the second and third quarters. Weather conditions, the timing of manufacturer
incentive programs and model changeovers cause seasonality in, and may adversely atfect our profitability and
new vehicle demand. Pans and service demand remains more stable throughout the year.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Guarantees and Indemnifications

In connection with the operation and disposition of dealership franchises, we have entered into various
guarantees and indemnifications. We expect the aggregate amount of the obligations we guarantee to increase as
we disposc of additional franchises. See Note 11 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
regarding these guarantees and indemnifications. Past performance under these guarantees and indemnifications
and their estimated fair value has been immaterial to our liquidity and capital resources. Although we seek to
mitigate our exposure in connection with these maiters, these guarantees and indemnifications, including
environmental exposures and the financial performance of lease assignees and sublessees, cannot be predicted
with certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could have a material adverse effect on
our liquidity and capital resources.

5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of our Class A common stock, at the option of the holder,
based on centain conditions. Sec Note 6 to our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion regarding these
conversion conditions which are primarily linked to the per share price of our Class A common stock and the
relationship between the trading values of our Class A Common Stock and the 2002 Convertibles. This type of
financing arrangement was selected by us in order to achicve a more favorable interest rate {as opposed to other
forms of available financing). The 2002 Convertibles are material to our liquidity and capital resources.

4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes, Hedge and Warrants

The 2005 Convertibles are convertible at the option of the holder into cash and shares of our Class A
common stock, based on certain conditions. See Note 6 te our Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion
regarding these conversion conditions which are primarily linked to the relationship between the trading values
of our Class A common stock and the 2005 Convertibles. Since both the holders of the 2005 Convertibles and we
can redeem these notes on or after October 31, 2010, we expect that either a conversion or a redemption of these
notes will occur in 2010, This type of financing arrangement was selected by us in order to achieve a more
favorable interest rate (as opposed to other forms of available financing). The 2005 Convertibles are material to
our liquidity and capital resources.

In connection with the issuance of the 2005 Convertibles we entered into convertible hedge and warrant
transactions. The convertible note hedge and warrant transactions are designed 1o increase the effective
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conversion price per share of our Class A commen stock from $24.14 to $33.00 and, therefore, mitigate the
potential dilution upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles at the time of conversion. The convertible note hedge
and warrant transactions have been recorded at cost within stockholders’ equity on our Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to,
and Potentiaily Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock™ and EITF No. 01-6, “The Meaning of “Indexed to a
Company’s Own Stock”. See Note 1 1o our Consolidated Financial Statements, Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, for a discussion regarding the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

Our variable rate floor plan facilities, revolving credit facility borrowings and other variable rate notes
expose us to risks caused by fluctvations in the applicable interest rates, The total outstanding balance of such
variable instruments after considering the effect of our interest rate swaps (see below) was approximately
$1,181.3 million at December 31, 2006 and approximately $1,174.8 million at December 31, 2005. A change of
100 basis points in the underlying interest rate would have caused a change in interest expense of approximately
$14.5 miilion in 2006 and approximately $14.3 million in 2005. Of the total change in interest expense,
approximately $10.9 million in 2006 and approximately $9.0 million in 2005 would have resulted from the floor
plan facilities.

In addition to our variable rate debt, approximately 20% of our dealership facilities have monthly lease
payments that fluctuate based on LIBOR interest rates. A change in interest rates of 100 basis points would have
had an estimated impact on rent expense of approximately $2.9 million in 2006,

In order to reduce our exposure to market risks from fluctuations in interest rates, we had an interest rate
swap agreement (the “Fixed Swap”} to effectively convert a portion of our LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a
fixed rate. The Fixed Swap matured June 6, 2006 and had a notional principal of $100.0 million. Under the terms
of the Fixed Swap, we received interest payments on the notional amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR
rate, adjusted monthly, and made interest payments at a fixed rate of 4.50%.

We have five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million (collectively, the “New Variable Swaps™)
to effectively convert a portion of our fixed rate debt under the 8.625% Notes to a LIBOR-based variable rate
debt. Under the New Variable Swaps, we receive 8.625% on the respective notional amounts and pay interest
payments on the respective notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month LIBOR which is fixed on
February 15 and August 15 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% to 3.85% with a weighted average
spread of 3.83%. The New Variable Swaps expire on August 15, 2013.

Future maturities of variable and fixed rate debt, and related interest rate swaps are as follows:

Fair
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011  Thereafter Total Value
(Amounts in thousands, except for interest rates)
Liabilities
Long-term Debt:
FixedRate . ..., ... .. ... .. ... ..... 2465 2599 131,353 158,691 3051 281.604 580,763 649,169
Average Stated Interest Rate .. ......... 10.19% 10.19% 5.32% 4.33% 10.19% 8.70% 6.75%
VanableRate . . ........... .. ......... 242 243 — 20,086 — — 20,571 20,571
Average Stated InterestRate ........... 5.00% 8.00% 7.32% 4.97%
Imterest Rate Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps:
FixedtoVarable ...................... — — — — — 150,000 150,000 4,710

Averagepayrate . ..................... 3.83% 3.83%
+6 month  + 6 month
LIBOR LIBOR

Receiverate .. ..... ... ... ........... 8.625% 8.625%
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Foreign Currency Risk -

In common with other automotive retailers, we purchase certain of our new vehicle and parts inventories
from foreign manufacturers. Although we purchase our inventories in U.S. Dollars, our business is subject to
foreign exchange rate risk which may influence automobile manufacturers’ ability to provide their products at
competitive prices in the United States. To the extent that we cannot recapture this volatility in prices charged to
customers or if this volatility negatively impacts consumer demand for our products, this volatility could
adversely affect our future operating results, ‘




Reports on Internal Control Over Finanical Reporting

Report of Managment

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting
is & process designed to provide a reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the framework in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Based on our evaluation under the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework, our management concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2006.

During 2006, Sonic acquired six automotive dealerships which were not included in our assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. As a result, management’s conclusion regarding the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting does not extend to these dealerships. These
dealerships represented approximately 2.2% of Sonic’s 2006 revenues from continuing operations and 1,3% of
Sonic’s 2006 revenues related to discontinued operations. See Note 2 to our accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional information on these 2006 acquisitions.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2006 has been attested to by Deloitte and Touche LLP, the independent registered public
accounting firm that audited our financial statements included in this Annual Report, as stated in their report
which is included herein.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sonic Automotive, Inc.
Charlotte, North Carolina

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting, that Sonic Automotive, Inc. and subsidiaries {the “Company™) maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission. As
described in the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, management excluded from their
assessment the internal control over financial reporting at RRR, LLC, RRR II, LLC, Fred Oakley Motors, Lynch
Motors, Inc., Piercey South, Inc. and Freemont Motorcars (the “2006 Acquisitions™) which were acquired on
January 9, 2006, January 9, 2006, March 6, 2006, April 24, 2006, July 11, 2006 and December 21, 2006,
respectively, and whose financial statements constitute 0.2 percent and 3.9 percent of net and total assets,
respectively, 2.2 percent of revenues, and 1.3 percent of net income of the consolidated financial statement
amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006, Accordingly, cur audit did not include the internal
control over financial reporting at the 2006 Acquisitions. The Company’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is o express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of,
the company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and
effected by the company’s board of directors, management, and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal
control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over
financia! reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. Also in our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on the criteria established in Jnternal
Control ~Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 of the
Company and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements
and included an explanatory paragraph regarding the adoption of the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, and application of the provisions of Securities and
Exchange Commission Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements
When Quantifving Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements.

/s/  DeLoirTE & TOUCHE LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 16, 2007
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Financial Statements

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Sonic Automotive, Inc,
Charlotte, North Carolina

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Sonic Automotive, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the “Company™) as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of income,
stockholders’ equity. and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an
opinion on the financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial siatement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2005 and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of
accounting for compensation expense for share-based awards to conform to Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No, 123(R), Share-Bused Payment. Also, as discussed in Note | to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company applied the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements When Quantifying Misstatements in
Current Yeur Financial Statements.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standurds of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on the criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 16, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion on management's assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting und an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

/s DeLoITrE & ToucHE LLP

Charlotte. North Carolina
March 16, 2007
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2005 and 2006
(Dollars in thousands}

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cashequivalents . ... ... ... i i i e
Receivables, met . . ... ... . e
INVEIEONIES « . . e e e e
Assetsheldforsale ...... ... .. . ... .. ... .. .. ... ...
Construction in progress expected to be sold in sale-leaseback transactions . . . ..
Other CUMTENt ASSEES . ...\ vttt ettt it ae et e

Total CUMeNt ASSEES . . . v ottt s et et e et e e
Property and Equipment, net .. ... ... . ..
Goodwill, net ... . e
Other Intangible Assets, et .. .. ... . i
Other ASSELS . .. i e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Notes payable—floor plan—trade ......... ... .. ... . ... ... ... ... .....
Notes payable—floor plan—non-trade . .................................
Trade accounts payable ... ... . . i
F i 1T T 1 A
Other accrued Nabilities . ... ... . . .. .. e
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale—trade ......................
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale—non-trade .. ................
Current maturities of long-termdebt . .. ... . ... . ... L.

Total current liabilities ........ ... . . .. . . . ..
Long-Term Debt . ... ... . .. e
Other Long-Term Liabilities ... ... ... i e i
Deferred Income Taxes .. .. ... . i
Commitments and Contingencies
Stockholders’ Equity:

Class A convertible preferred stock, none issued . .........................
Class A common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized,
40,561,149 shares issued and 29,945,785 shares outstanding at December 31,
2005; 41,890,540 shares issued and 30,691,576 shares cutstanding at
December 31, 2000 .. ... i
Class B common stock; $.01 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized;
12,029,375 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2006 . .. ... s
Paid-incapital ... ... ... .
Retained earnings .. ... .. ...ttt e
Accumulated other comprehensive income ........... ... ... .. L.
Deferred compensation related to restricted stock .......... ... ... ..l
Treasury stock, at cost (10,615,364 Class A shares held at December 31, 2005
and 11,198,964 Class A shares held at December 31,2006) .. .............

Total stockholders” equity . ...
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity ...........................

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2005 2006
$ 7566 $ 12,69
396,225 385,849
1,016,457 991,984
73.837 160,571
95,131 26,198
27,484 35,834
1,616,700 1,613,132
148267 220,551
1,122,538 1,155,428
88,696 94,136
49,300 41,517
$3,025,501  $3,124,764
$ 579022 $ 377.943
410296 686515
91,101 68,016
17,378 19,336
167.060 180,884
45,953 54,229
6,937 42,063
2,747 2,707
1,320,494 1,431,693
712,311 598,627
29,479 39,570
132419 151,034
403 416
121 121
433,654 464,01
542,374 598,293
20 —
(1,829) —
(143,945) (159,001
830,798 903,840
$3,025,501  $3,124,764




SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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2004 2005 2006
Revenues:
Newwvehicles .. ... ... . . $3,972,790 $4,483,920 $4,897.284
Usedvehicles ... .. 1,013,817 1,126,651 1,275,020
Wholesale vehicles .. ....... ... ... . 438,848 498 589 493,512
Total vehicles ... .. . . . i 5,425,455 6,109,160 6,665,816
Parts, service and collision repair ........................... 879.176 988,432 1,114,870
Finance, insurance andother . .......... . ... .. .. . . .0 . 0., 165,419 181,128 191,388
Totalrevenues .. ... ... . ... . . ... 6,470,050  7.278,720 7,972,074
Costofsales ... ... . . . . 54777796 6,161,675 6,740,492
Grossprofit .......... o 992254  1,117.045 1,231,582
Selling, general and administrative expenses ...................... 772,042 850,450 939,825
Depreciation and amortization . .............vo o, 14,429 18,390 23,409
Operating INCOME .. ... ... ot i, 205,783 248,205 268,348
Other income / (expense):
Interest expense, floorplan . ........ .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... (22,286) (35,493) (59,609)
Interest expense, other, net ............... ... . v {41,456) (45,368) (42,785)
Other income / (eXpense), et . ......vunnn ... 44 45 (597)
Total otherexpense ... ... .. ... ... ... . . .. (63,698) (80.816)  (102,991)
Income from continuing operations before taxes . .................. 142,085 167,389 165,357
Provision forincome taxes ............ .. . 53,940 62,545 66,791
Income from continuing operations .. .................. ... ...... 88,145 104,844 98,566
Discontinued operations:
Loss from operations and the sale of discontinued franchises ... .. (2,271) (16,647) (26,090)
Incometax benefit .. ... ... . . ... ... 197 3,604 8,641
Loss from discontinued operations ..................... . ........ (2,074) (12,983) (17.449)
Netincome ... ... i $ 86,071 % 91,81 $ 81,117
Basic earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations ................ 3 213 8 251 § 233
Loss per share from discontinued operations ............... ... (0.05) {0.31) @40
Earnings pershare ........ ... ... ... .. .o oL $ 208 $ 220 % 1.92
Weighted average common shares outstanding . ............... 41,375 41,817 42,336
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Earnings per share from continuing operations . ............... $ 204 § 240§ 222
Loss per share from discontinued operations .................. (0.04) (0.28) (0.37)
Eammingspershare ..... ... ... . ... ... ... . Ll $ 200 $ 212 3 1.85
Weighted average common shares outstanding ................ 45217 45,533 46,265
Dividends declared percommonshare ... ... .. ... ........... $ 044 % 048 §$ 0.48
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NetIincome ... $ 86071 % 91861 $ 81117
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by eperating activities;
Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment ... ... ol 17,131 21,982 23,903
Provision for bad debtexpense ... ... .. ... 7.638 13,078 9,210
Other amortization . ... ... i i e 281 309 715
Debt issuance cost amoOTtzZation . ... ... e e e 526 401 1.054
Debt discount amertization, net of premium amortization ............ ... ... ... ..... 78 77 691
Stock—Dbased compensation eXPense ... ... 162 1,288 6.802
Deferred income 1axes ... ... ... L. e e © 15,781 30,731 10,572
Equity interest in earnings of investees . . ... ... (807) (819) (915)
Impairment of franchise agreements ... ... .. i 1.075 — 2,525
Impairment of property and equipment ... ..., ... . 3,188 1.650 10,988
(Gain)/L.oss on disposal of franchises and property and cquipment .. ................... 4.577) 6 (3,582)
Loss on exit of leased dealerships . ... . ... e — 649 9,598
Changes in assets and liabitities that relate to operations: . ...........................
Receivables ... .o i (58.044) (49,770} 1472
IVemMIONEs « . e 28,055 36.123 (20,049
OIRET A558LS .« . oottt e 10 (17,589) 15.079
Notes payable—floorplan—trade ......... ... ... . ... .. .. . . . 70.049 (40.535)  (192,803)
Trade accounts payable and other labilities ... ... ... o o 92.210 (5.661) (18,241)
Totaladjustments ... ... . 172.756 (7.780)  (142.981)
Net cash provided by/{used in} operating activities ................. ... ... ........ 258,827 84,081 (61.864)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of businesses, net of cash acquired . ... ... ...t (268.666)  (138,760) (110371
Purchases of property and equipment . ... ... .. L (105,603) (81,638) (99.848)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ... ............... ... . ... . .. . ... 68.136 26,435 40.698
Proceeds from sale of franchises .. .. ... ... . 54.957 61.572 50,961
Distributions from equity inVESIEEs . ... ov. vt e e — 500 600
Net cash used in investing activities ... ... .t et e (251,176)  (131,891) (117960
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowings/(repayments) on notes payable floor plun—non-trade ...................... (3.214) 32,060 311,344
Borrowings on revolving credit facilities . ... ... . e 742,610 671,776 849758
Repayments on revolving credit facilities . ... .. ... .. (799.537)  (778.663)  (961.,418)
Proceeds from long-termdebr ... .. ... o i64 156,159 —
Diebt issUance COstS « . ..ottt e — (640) (2.776)
Purchase of convertible note hedge and warrants, net .. ... .. ... ..o — (18,460) —
Payments onlong-termdebt . ... ... ... (2537 (2,094 (1,889}
Purchases of treasury StOCK . ..ot 20917 (5.584) (15,056)
Income tax benefit associated with stock compensation plans ... ..., oo .. 5.270 1,504 4.396
Income tax benefit associated with convertiblehedge ................................... — 175 1.762
Issuance of shares under stock compensationplans . .................................... 15,784 9.22% 19.239
Dividends paidd ... ..o (17.365)  (20077)  (20.406)
Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities . ................................ (79.742) 45,385 184,954
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS .................... (72.091) (2.425) 5.130
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR ... ... ..o i, 82.082 9,991 7.566
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS.ENDOF YEAR .. ... ... .. .. . i, $ 9991 % 73566 % 12696
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in accrual for purchases of property and equipment .............................. $ (1.220) 3 514§  (598)
Adoption of SAB 108 . .. ... g — 8 — 3 (4607
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NON-CASH FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Restricted stock issMance ....... ... .. i 3 3570 % 651 § 4118
Restricted stock forfeiture ... ... oo 3 — $ (745 $ —
Long-term debt assumed in purchase of business, including premium of $7.254 .............. $ 33824 % — 3 —
Change in fair value of cash flow hedging instruments (net of tax expense/f{benefit) of $2,040,
$798 and $(13} in 2004. 2005 and 2006, respectively) ... ... e $ 3191 % 1248 3 20
SUPPLEMENTAL. DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest, net of amount capitalized .. ... .. L e $ 74398 § 91.853 3 114538
INCOMe LIXeS . . e $ 14731 § 30434 § 46329

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All tables in thousands except per share amounts)

1. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Business—Sonic Automotive, Inc. (“Sonic” or the “Company™) is one of the largest
automotive retailers in the United States (as measured by total revenue), operating 171 dealership franchises and
37 collision repair centers throughout the United States as of December 31, 2006. Sonic sells new and used cars
and light trucks, sells replacement parts, provides vehicle maintenance, warranty, paint and repair services, and
arranges related financing and insurance for its automotive customers. As of December 31, 2006, Sonic sold a
total of 36 foreign and domestic brands of new vehicles.

Principles of Consolidation—All of Sonic’s dealership and non-dealership subsidiaries are wholly owned
and consolidated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements except for the one fifty-percent owned
dealership that is accounted for under the equity method in accordance with Accounting Principles Board
Opinion No. 18, “The Equity Method of Accounting for Investuments in Common Stock™ All material
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Reclassifications—In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”, individual franchises sold, terminated or
classified as held for sale are required to be reported as discontinued operations. During 2006. Sonic completed
the disposal of 12 automobile franchises, and had approved, but not yet compieted, the disposition of 30
additional franchises. In accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 144, the results of operations of these
franchises for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006 are reported as discontinued operations for all
periods presented, Many of the provisions of SFAS No. 144 involve judgment in determining whether a franchise
will be reported as continuing or discontinued operations. Such judgments include whether a franchise will be
sold or terminated, the period required to complete the disposition and the likelihood of changes to a plan for
sale. If in future periods Sonic determines that a franchise should be either reclassified from continuing
operations 10 discontinued operations or from discontinued operations to continuing operations, previously
reported Consolidated Statements of Income are reclassified in order (o reflect the current classification.

Sonic has corrected its presentation within the consolidated statements of cash flows related to borrowings
and repayments under its revolving credit facilities. Such borrowings and repayments which were formally
presented net, are now presented gross. This correction had no effect on total cash flows provided from financing
activities.

In addition, in order to maintain consistency and comparability between periods, certain other amounts in
Sonic’s consolidated financial statements have been reclassified from previously reported balances to conform to
the current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Proncuncemenis—in September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission
issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108, “Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when
Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements” (“SAB 108™), which provides interpretive
guidance on the consideration of the effects of prior year misstatements in quantifying current year misstatements
for the purpose of a materiality assessment. In years prior to 2006, Sonic used the “rollover” method as described
in SAB 108 in evaluating the effect of misstatements in its financial statements. Based on utilizing the “rollover”
method in prior years, Sonic had determined that certain misstatements were not material to its overall financial
statement presentation. These misstatements relate to the recorded amount of accruals pertaining to bonuses and
vacation cbligations. A portion of the misstatements resulted from Sonic’s policy of expensing bonuses in the
period the items were paid rather than in the period they became payable and thus understated accrued liabilities,
and overstated retained earnings. This accounted for approximately $0.7 million of the after-tax charge to
beginning retained earnings as described below. In addition, prior to 2004, Sonic had accrued for the vested
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

vacation earned by its associates in the prior period but had did not accrue for the vacation earned in the current
period which had not yet vested. The result was an understatement of accrued labilities and an overstatement of
retained earnings. This accounted for $3.9 million of the after-tax charge (o retained earnings described below,
Each of the misstatements originated in years prior to 2004. Sonic evaluated the effect of these misstutements
under both the “rollover method™ and the “iron curtain” method in 2006 as prescribed by SAB [08. As a result of
this evaluation, Sonic determined that although these misstatements continued to be immaterial under the
“rollover”™ method, the misstatements were material to the financial statements when measured under the “iron
curtain” method. As allowed in the initial year of adoption, Sonic has corrected the misstatements in 2006 with a
charge to 2006 beginning retained earnings of approximately $4.6 million, net of associated taxes of $2.8 million,
with affsets increasing other accrued liabilities by $7.4 million.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB"} issued FASB Interpretation
(“FIN™) No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”. FIN Ne. 48 prescribes financial statement
recognition and measurement criteria for a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Sonic is
currently evaluating the provisions of FIN No. 48, which will be effective for Sonic in the first quarter of 2007,
and has not determined the impact on Sonic’s consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows,

In Scptember 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measures” (“SFAS 157"). SFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and enhances disclosures about fair value
measures required under other accounting pronouncements, but does not change existing guidance as 10 whether
or not an instrument is carried at fair valve. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007, the year beginning January 1, 2008 for Sonic. Sonic is currently reviewing the provisions of
SFAS No. 157 to determine the impact on its consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 159, “The
Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities”. SFAS No. 159 permits entities to choose to
measure eligible items at fair value at specified election dates and report unrealized gains and losses on items for
which the fair value option has been elected in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. SFAS No. 159 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. Sonic is currently reviewing the provisions of
SFAS No. 159 to determine the impact on its consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows,

Use of Estimates—The preparation of finuncial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires Sonic’s management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting peried. Actual results could differ from those estimates particularly related to allowance for
credit loss, realization of inventory, intangible asset and deferred tax asset values, reserves for tax contingencies,
legal matters, reserves for future chargebacks, results reported as continuing and discontinued operations,
insurance reserves and certain accrued expenses.

Cash and Cash Equivalents—Sonic classifies cash and ail highly liquid investments with a maturity of
three months or less at the date of purchase, including shori-term time deposits and government agency and

corporate obligations, as cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue Recognition—Sonic records revenue when vehicles are delivered to customers, when vehicle
service work is performed and when parts are delivered.

Sonic arranges financing for customers through various financial institutions and receives a commission
from the financial institution either in a flat fee amount or in an amount equal to the difference between the
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continved)

interest rates charged to customers over the predetermined interest rates set by the financial institution. Sonic also
receives commissions from the sale of various insurance contracts to customers. Sonic may be assessed a
chargeback fee in the event of early cancellation of a loan or insurance contract by the customer. Finance and
insurance commission revenue is recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time the related contract is placed
with the financial institution.

Sonic also receives commissions from the sale of non-recourse third party extended service contracts to
customers. Under these contracts, the applicable manufacturer or third party warranty company is directly liable
for all warranties provided within the contract. Commission revenue from the sale of these third party extended
service contracts is recorded net of estimated chargebacks at the time of sale. As of December 31, 2005 and
2006, the amounts recorded as allowances for commission chargeback reserves were $12.9 million and
$15.1 million, respectively. The majority of these amounts recorded as allowances for commission chargeback
reserves were classified in the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements as other accrued liabilities and
the remaining amount was classified as other long-term liabilities.

Floor Plan Assistance—Sonic receives floor plan assistance payments from certain manufacturers. This
assistance reduces the carrying value of Sonic’s new vehicle inventory and is recognized as a reduction of cost of
sales at the time the vehicle is sold. Amounts included in cost of sales were $31.8 million, $33.5 million and
$36.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. There was an additional
$8.8 million, $7.4 miltion and $5.4 million in floor plan assistance related to discontinued operations for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Contracts in Transit—Contracts in transit represent customer finance contracts evidencing loan agreements
or lease agreements between Sonic, as creditor, and the customer, as borrower, to acquire or tease a vehicle in
situations where a third-party finance source has given Sonic initial, non-binding approval (o assume Sonic’s
position as creditor. Funding and final approval from the finance source is provided upon the finance source's
review of the loan or lease agreement and related documentation executed by the customer at the dealership.
These finance contracts are typically funded within ten days of the initial approval of the finance transaction
given by the third-party finance source. The finance source is not contractually obligated 1o make the loan or
lease to the customer until it gives its final approval and funds the transaction, and until such final approval is
given, the contracts in transit represent amounts due from the customer to Sonic. Contracts in transit are included
in receivables on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and totaled $161.0 mitlion at December 31,
2005 and $171.2 million at December 31, 2006.

Accounts Receivable—In addition to contracts in transit, Sonic’s accounts receivable consist of amounts
due from the manufacturers for repair services performed on vehicles with a remaining factory warranty and
amounts due from third parties from the sale of parts. Sonic believes that there is a minimal risk of
uncollectability on warranty receivables. Sonic evaluates parts and other receivables for collectability based on
the age of the receivable, the credit history of the customer and past collection experience, The allowance for
doubtful accounts receivable is not significant.

Inventories—Inventories of new, recorded net of manufacturer credits, and used vehicles, including
demonstrators, are stated at the lower of specific cost or market. Inventories of parts and accessories are
accounted for using the “first-in, first-out” (“FIFO™) method of inventory accounting and are stated at the lower
of FIFO cost or market. Other inventories are primarily service loaner vehicles and. 10 a lesser extent, vehicle
chassis, other supplies und capitalized customer work-in-progress (open customer vehicle repair orders). Other
inventories are stated at the lower of specific cost {depreciated cost for service loaner vehicles) or market,
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Sonic assesses the valuation of all of its vehicle and parts inventories and maintains a reserve where the cost
basis exceeds the fair market value. In making this assessment for new vehicles, Sonic primarily considers the
age of the vehicles along with the timing of annual and model changeovers. For used vehicles, Sonic considers
recent market data and trends such as loss histories along with the current age of the inventory. Parts inventories
are primarily assessed considering excess quantity and continued usefulness of the part. The risk with parts
inventories is minimized by the fact that excess or obsolete parts can generally be returned to the manufacturer.

Property and Equipment—Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization 1s
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Sonic amortizes leasehold
improvements over the shorter of the estimated useful life or the remaining lease life. This lease life includes
renewal options if a renewal has been determined to be reasonably assured. The range of estimated useful lives is
as follows:

Leasehold and land improvements . .. ... ... . .. ... e, 10-30 years
Buildings . . ... . 10-30 years
Parts and service equipment . .......... . . . . e 7-10 years
Office equipment and fixtures . ..., ... ... . . . . . . . i 3-10 years
Company vehicles .. ... ... . . . i 3-5 years

Sonic reviews the carrying value of property and eguipment and other long-term assets (other than goodwill
and franchise assets) for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. If such an indication is present, Sonic compares the carrying amount of the asset to
the estimated undiscounted cash flows related to those assets. Sonic concludes that an asset is impaired if the sum
of such expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the related asset. If Sonic determines an
asset is impaired, the impairment loss would be the amount by which the carrying amount of the related asset
exceeds its fair value. The fair value of the asset would be determined based on the quoted markert prices, if
available. If quoted market prices are not available, Sonic determines fair value by using a discounted cash flow
model.

Impairment expense related to property and equipment of $3.6 million was recorded in selling, general and
administrative expenses during the year ended December 31, 2006. This impairment expense was related to
decisions to abandon several construction projects and current market information which indicated that the fair
value of land parcels held for sale was less than the recorded value. Additional property and equipment
impairment charges of $7.4 million were recorded during 2006 in discontinued operations. This impairment
expense was recorded based on the estimated fair value of the property and equipment 10 be sold in connection
with the disposal of the associated franchises and recorded balances.

In 2005, property and equipment impairment charges totaling $1.2 million were recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses relating to the abandonment of construction projects and the abandonment and
disposal of dealership equipment. These construction project impairment charges were recorded in connection
with the decision to abandon the construction projects. The dealership equipment impairment charges were
recorded in connection with the decision to downsize certain wholesale parts operations. Additional property and
equipment impairment charges of $1.4 million were recorded during 2005 in discontinued operations relating to
the abandonment of construction projects and the write-down of leasehold improvements for franchises classified
as assets held for sale. The construction projects were abandoned in connection with the decision to sell the
related franchises. The impairment charge for leasehold improvements relates to the difference between the
discounted cash flows of sublease receipts, net of amounts owed under the lease, for property where the leasehold
improvements reside and the carrying value of the leaschold improvements. An impairment charge for the
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SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

leasehold improvements was recorded when it was determined that Sonic would not recover the carrying value of
the leasehold improvements when considering the lease costs net of sublease receipts.

In 2004, property and equipment impairment charges totaling $0.8 million were recorded in continuing
operations (selling, general and administrative expenses) relating to the abandonment of construction projects
and the abandonment and disposal of dealership equipment. These construction project impairment charges were
recorded in connection with the decision to abandon the construction projects. The dealership equipment
impairment charges were recorded in connection with the decision to downsize certain wholesale parts
operations. Additional property and equipment impairment charges of $2.4 million were recorded during 2004 in
discontinued operations relating to the abandonment of construction projects and the write-down of leasehold
improvements for franchises classified as assets held for sale. The construction projects were abandoned in
connection with the decision to sell the related franchises. The impairment.charge for leasehold improvements
relates to the difference between the discounted cash flows of sublease receipts for property where the leasehold
improvements reside and the carrying value of the leasehold improvements. An impairment charge for the
leasehold improvements was recorded when it was determined that Sonic would not recover the carrying value of
the leasehold improvements when considering the lease costs net of sublease receipts.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—Sonic utilizes derivative financial instruments for the
purpose of hedging the risks of certain identifiable and anticipated transactions and the fair value of certain
obligations classified as long-term debt on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. In general, the types
of risks being hedged are those relating to the variability of cash flows, the delivery of Sonic’s Class A common
stock in connection with the conversion of convertible debt and long-term debt falr values caused by fluctuations
in interest rates. Sonic documents its risk management strategy and hedge effectwene%q at the inception of and
during the term of each hedge. The only derivatives currently being used are interest rate swaps, used for the
purposes of hedging cash flows of variable rate debt and the fair value of fixed rate long-term debt, and options
to buy and sell Sonic’s Class A common stock, used for the purpose of hedging the amount of Sonic’s Class A
common stock required 1o be issued to holders of Sonic’s 4.25% convertible senior subordinated notes (the “2005
Convertibles”) upon conversion.

Sonic had utilized two separate interest rate swap agreements (the “Fixed Swaps”) to effectively convert a
portion of the LIBOR-based variable rate debt to a fixed rate. The first swap agreement matured October 31,
2004 and had a notional principal amount of $100.0 million. The second swap agreement matured June 6, 2006
and had a notional principal of $100.0 million, Under the terms of the first swap agreement, Sonic received
interest payments on the notional amount ar a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate, adjusted monthly, and
made interest paymerits at a fixed rate of 3.88%. Under the terms of the second swap agreement, Sonic received
interest payments on the notional amount at a rate equal to the one month LIBOR rate, adjusted monthly, and
made Interest payments at a fixed rate of 4.50%. Incremental interest expense incurred (the difference between
interest received and interest paid) as a result of the Fixed Swaps was $5.4 million, $1.2 million in 2004 and
2005, respectively, and a benefit of $0.1 million in 2006, and has been included in interest expense, other, net in
the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The Fixed Swaps have been designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges and, as a result, changes in the fair value of the Fixed Swaps have been recorded in other
comprehensive (loss)/income, net of related income taxes, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders” Equity.,

In 2003, Sonic entered into five separate interest rate swaps totaling $150.0 million (collectively the “Old
Variable Swaps™) to effectively convert a portion of the Company’s fixed rate debt to a LIBOR-based variable
rate debt, Under the Old Variable Swaps’ agreements, Sonic received 8.625% on the notional amounts, paid
interest payments on the notional amounts at a rate equal to the six month LIBOR in arrears (as determined on
February 15 and August 15 of each year) plus a spread ranging from 3.50% to 3.84% with a weighted average
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spread of 3.64%, through the expiration of August 15, 2013 and were designated and qualified as fair value
hedges. In the second quarter of 2005, Sonic canceled ail of the Old Variable Swaps. The Old Variable Swaps
had a collective mark-to-market of a $0.4 million loss at cancellation. In connection with this cancellation, Sonic
entered into five separate new interest rate swaps with identical terms to the Old Variable Swaps except that
Sonic pays a variable rate equal to the fixed six month LIBOR rate which will be fixed on February 15 and
August 15 of each year plus a spread ranging from 3.825% to 3.85% (with a weighted average spread of 3.83%)
(collectively, the “New Variable Swaps”). The New Variable Swaps have been designated and qualify as fair
value hedges and, as a result, the fair value of the New Variable Swaps of $3.7 million has been recorded against
the associated fixed rate long-term debt with an equal offsetting amount of $3.7 million recorded as a derivative
liability within other long-term liabilities. The benefit realized (the difference between interest paid and interest
received) as a result of the Old and New Swaps was $4.2 million, $1.5 million in 2004 and 2005, respectively,
and expense of $0.4 million in 2006, and has been included in interest expense, other, net in the accompanymg
Consolidated Statements of Income.

In connection with the issuance of Sonic’s 4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes due 2015 in 2005
(the “2005 Convertibles”), Sonic purchased five year call options on Sonic’s Class A common stock
(collectively, the “Purchased Options”) from the initial purchasers of the 2005 Convertibles. Under the terms of
the Purchased Options, which become exercisable upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, Sonic has the right
to purchase a total of approximately 6.6 million shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock from the counterparties
at a purchase price of $24.14 per share and are net share settleable upon conversion of thé 2005 Convertibles.
The total cost of the Purchased Options was $27.5 million, which was recorded in stockholders’ equity on the
accompanying audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with EITF No. 00-19, *Accounting for
Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, _a Company’s Own Stock” and
EITF No. 01-6, “The Meaning of “Indexed to a Company’s Own Stock™. Sonic anticipates that the cost of the
Purchased Options will be dediictible as original issue discount for income tax purposes over the expected life of
the 2005 Convertibles (five years). The tax benefit of this original issue discount deduction w1ll be recorded as a
credit to stockholders’ equity as the deduction occurs.

The cost of the Purchased Options was partially offset by the sale of warrants to acquire shares of Sonic’s
Class A common stock from Sonic with a term of five years (collectively, the “Warrants™) to the same
counterparties with whom Sonic entered into the Purchased Options. The Warrants are exercisable for a total of
approximately 7.0 million shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock at an exercise price of $33.00 per share
subject to adjustment (at the sole reasonable discretion of the counterparties which shall be made in good faith
and based on a commercially reasonable manner) for quarterly dividends in excess of $0.12 per quarter,
liquidatien, bankruptcy, delivery of shares that are not registered with the SEC, or a change in control of Sonic
and other conditions. The settlement method for the warranis is net share settlement or cash at the option of
Sonic; if Sonic chooses to deliver shares that are not registered with the SEC, the number of shares to be
delivered will be determined by counterparties to the warrants in a commercially reasonable manner. Subject to
these adjustments, the maximum amount of shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock that could have been
required to be issued under the warrants was fifty miilion shares at December 31, 2006, The proceeds from the
sale of the Warrants were $9.1 million, which was also recorded in stockholders’ equity on the accompanying
audited consolidated financial statements in accordance with EITF No. 00-19 and EITF No. 01-6. In accordance
with EITF No. 00-19, the cost of the Purchased Options and Warrants will not be marked-to-market.

The Purchased Options and the Warrants are subject to early expiration upon the occurrence of certain
events that may or may not be within Sonic’s control. Should there be an early termination of the Purchased
Options and Warrants prior to the conversion of the 2005 Convertibles from an event outside of Sonic’s control,
the amount of shares potentially due to and due from Sonic under the Purchased Options and Warrants will be
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based soley on Sonic’s Class A common stock price, and the amount of time remaining on the Purchased Options
and the Warrants as set forth and agreed to upon the inception of the Purchased Options and Warrants and will be
settled in shares of Sonic’s Class A Common Stock. The net effect of the Purchased Options and the Warrants
was designed to increase the conversion price per share of Sonic’s Class A common stock from $24.14 to $33.00
{a 66.75% premium to the closing price of Sonic’s Class A common stock on the date that the 2005 Cenvertibles
were priced to investors) and, therefore, mitigate the potential dilution of Sonic’s Class A Common Stock upon
conversion of the 20035 Convertibles, if any.

No shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock were issued or received under the Purchased Options or
Warrants in 2005 or 2006. Changes in the price of Sonic’s Class A common stock will impact the share
settlement of the 2005 Convertibles, the Purchased Options and the Warrants as follows (shares in thousands):

Shares Issued Shares Acquired
Stock Price at Under the 2005 Under the Purchased Shares Issued Net Shares

Settlement Convertibles - Options Under the Warrants Issued
$24.00 — — — —
$25.00 227.0 (227.0} — —
$26.00 473.1 473.1) — —
$27.00 701.0 (701.0) — —
$28.00 912.7 (912.7) — —
$29.00 1,109.7 (1,109.7) — —
$30.00 1,293.6 (1,293.6) — —
$31.00 1,465.7 (1,465.7) — —
$32.00 1,627.0 (1,627.0) — —
$33.00- 1,778.5 (1,778.5) — ’ —
$34.00 1,921.1 (1,921.1) 204.7 204.7
$35.00 2,055.5 {2,055.5) 397.7 397.7
$36.00 2,182.5 (2,182.5) 579.9 579.9
$37.00 23026 {2,302.6) 752.3 1523
$38.00 24164 (2,416.4) 915.6 - 9156
$39.00 2,524.4 (2,524.4) 1,070.5 1,070.5
$40.00 2,627.0 (2,627.0) 1,217.7 1,217.7

Goodwill—Goodwill is recognized to the extent that the purchase price of the acquisition exceeds the
estimated fair value of the net assets acquired, including other identifiable intangible assets.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently when events or circumstances
indicate that impairment might have occurred. Based on criteria established by the applicable accounting
pronouncements, Sonic allocates the carrying value of goodwill and tests it for impairment based on Sonic's
three geographic divisions. The $1,167.8 million of goodwill on the balance sheet, including approximately
$12.3 million classified in assets held for sale, at December 31, 2006 was allocated to the following geographic
divisions {(dollars in millions):

Easternn DIVISION . ..ot e e $429.8

Central Division . .. ... .t e e $356.4
Western DIVISION .. ... ., $381.6

In evaluating goodwill for impairment, if the fair value of a division is less than the carrying value of that
division, Sonic is then required to proceed to the second step of the impairment test. The second step involves
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allocating the calculated fair value to all of the assets of the respective division as if the calculated fair value was
the purchase price of the business combination. This allocation would include assigning value to any previously
unrecognized identifiable assets (including franchise assets) which means the remaining fair value that would be
allocated to goodwill would be significantly reduced. See discussion regarding franchise agreements acquired
prior to July 1, 2001 in “Other Intangible Assets” below. Sonic would then compare the fair value of the goodwill
resulting from this allocation process to the carrying value of the goodwill in the respective division with the
difference representing the amount of impairment.

Sonic uses several assumptions and various fair value approaches in evaluating our goodwill for
impairment. These assumptions and approaches include various earnings multiple approaches along with a
discounted cash flow model utilizing estimated future earnings and Sonic’s weighted average cost of capital.

At December 31, 2006, Sonic was not required to conduct the second step of the impairment test described
above, and Sonic recognized no impairment of the carrying value of its goodwill on the balance sheet at
December 31, 2006.

However, if in future periods Sonic determines that the fair value of one or more of its divisions is less than
their carrying value, Sonic believes that application of the second step of the impairment test would result in a
substantial impairment charge to the goodwilt allocated to such division(s) and the amount of such impairment
charge would likely be materially adverse to Sonic’s consolidated operating results and financial position.

Other Intangible Assets—The principal identifiable intangible assets other than goodwill acquired in an
acquisition are rights under franchise agreements with manufacturers. Sonic expects franchise agreements to
continue for an indefinite pericd. When these agreements do not have indefinite terms, Sonic anticipates and has
experienced routine renewals without substantial cost and material modifications. As such, Sonic believes that its
franchise agreements will contribute to cash flows for an indefinite period, therefore the carrying amount of
franchise rights is not amortized. Franchise agreements acquired after July 1, 2001 have been included in other
intangible assets on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. Prior to July 1, 2001, franchise agreements
were recorded and amortized as part of goodwill and remain as part of goodwill on the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets. See Note 5 regarding impairment charges on franchise agreements. Other
intangible assets acquired in acquisitions include favorable lease agreements with definite lives which are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining lease term. Sonic tests other intangible assets for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate possible impairment.

Insurance Reserves—S3onic has various self-insured and high deductible casualty and medical insurance
programs which require the Company to make estimates in determining the ultimate liability it may incur for
claims arising under these programs. These insurance reserves are estimated by management using actuarial
evaluations based on historical claims experience, claims processing procedures, medical cost trends and, in
certain cases, a discount factor. At December 31, 2006, Sonic had $22.6 million reserved for such programs.

Lease Exit Accruals—The majority of Sonic’s dealership properties are leased under long-term operating
lease arrangements. When situations arise when the leased properties are no longer utilized in operations, Sonic
records lease exit accruals. These sitvations could include the relocation of an existing facility or the sale of a
tranchise whereby the buyer will not be subleasing the property for either the remaining term of the lease or for
an amount equal to Sonic’s obligation under the lease. The lease exit accruals represent the present value of the
lease payments, net of estimated sublease rentals, for the remaining life of the operating leases and other accruals
necessary to satisfy the lease commitment to the landlord. At December 31, 2006, Sonic had $8.7 million accrued
for lease exit costs.
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Income Taxes—Income taxes are provided for the tax effects of transactions reported in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements and consist of taxes currently due plus deferred taxes. Deferred taxes are
provided at currently enacted tax rates for the tax effects of carryforward items and temporary differences
between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their reported amounts.

As a matter of course, the Company is regularly audited by various taxing authorities and from time to time,
these audits result in proposed assessments where the ultimate resolution may result in the Company owing
additional taxes. Sonic’s management believes that the Company’s tax positions comply with applicable tax law
and that the Company has adequately provided for any reasonably foreseeable ontcome related to these matters.
Included in other accrued liabilittes at December 31, 2005 and 2006 are $3.1 million and $3.4 million,
respectively, in reserves that the Company has provided for these matters.

Sonic has $9.3 million in deferred tax assets related to state net operating loss carryforwards that will expire
between 2014 and 2026. Management reviews these carryforward positions, the time remaining until expiration
and other opportunities to utilize these carryforwards in making an assessment as to whether it is more likely than
not that these carryforwards will be utilized. Sonic has recorded a valuation allowance of $0.1 million in 2006
based on its judgement that certain state carryforwards will not be utilized. Sonic has not recorded a valuation
allowance related to its remaining carryforwards because management believes it is more likely than not that
taxable income for these states will be sufficient to realize the benefits of the associated deferred tax assets.
However, the results of future operations, regulatory framework of these taxing authorities and other related
matters cannot be predicted with certainty. Therefore, actual utifization of the losses which created these deferred
tax assets which differs from the assumptions used in the development of management’s judgment could result in
a charge that will be material to the Company’s consolidated operating results, financial position and cash flows.

Concentrations of Credit Risk—Financial instruments that potentially subject Sonic to concentrations of
credit risk consist principally of cash on deposit with financial institutions. At times, amounts invested with
financial institutions may exceed FDIC insurance limits. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables
are limited primarily to automobile manufacturers and financial institutions. The large number of customers
comprising the trade receivables balances reduces credit risk arising from trade receivables from commercial
customers.

During 2006, Sonic sold notes receivable held by its wholly owned finance subsidiary, Cornerstone
Acceptance Corporation (“Cornerstone™), to a third party for approximately $26.8 million. There was no material
gain or loss from the sale. As of December 31, 2006, Sonic had outstanding notes receivable held by
Cornerstone, of $28.5 million, net of an allowance for credit iosses of $4.9 million. Qutstanding notes receivable
at December 31, 2005 were $48.5 million, net of an allowance for credit losses of $8.3 million. These notes
receivable have average terms of approximately forty-three months and are secured by the related vehicles.
Sonic’s assessment of allowance for credit losses considers historical loss ratios, the performance of the current
portfolio with respect to past due accounts and the average age of the current portfolio. These notes receivable
are recorded in receivables, net, and other assets on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. All of the
interest income from Cornerstone’s finance contracts ($7.2 million in 2004, $9.7 million in 2005 and
$11.2 million in 2006) has been recorded as a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses,

The counterparties to Sonic’s interest rate swaps, Purchased Options and Warrants contracts consist of three
large financial institutions. Sonic could be exposed to loss in the event of nonperformance by any of these
counterparties. However, credit ratings and concentration of risk of these financial institutions are monitored by
Sonic’s management and present no significant credit risk to Sonic.
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Financial Instruments and Markef Risks—As of December 31, 2005 and 2006 the fair values of Sonic’s
financial instruments including receivables, notes receivable from finance contracts, notes payable-floor plan,
trade accounts payable, payables for acquisitions and long-term debt, excluding Sonic’s 8.625% senior
subordinated notes, 5.25% convertible senior subordinated notes, 2005 Convertibles and certain notes payable to
a finance company, approximate their carrying values due either to length of maturity or existence of variable
interest rates that approximate prevailing market rates.

The fair value and carrying value of Sonic’s fixed rate long-term debt was as follows:

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2006
Carrying Carrying

Fair Value Value Fair Value Value

(dollars in thousands)

8.625% Senior Subordinated Notes (13 . . .................... $263,313 $272,278 $285.656 $272,530
5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes (1} ............. $126,848 $128,037 $126,197 $128,611
4.25% Convertible Sentor Subordinated Notes (1) .......... ... 8172752 $156,074 $209,883 $156,798
Notes Payable to a Finance Company (2) ................. ... $ 30,129 $ 30,197 § 27433 $ 27.904

(1) As determined by market quotations,
{2) As determined by discounted cash flows.

Sonic has variable rate notes payable—floor plan, revolving credit facilities and other variable rate notes
that expose Sonic to risks caused by fluctuations in the underlying interest rates. The total outstanding balance of
such facilities before the effects of interest rate swaps was approximately $1,174.8 million at December 31, 2005
and $1,181.3 million at December 31, 2006,

Advertising—Sonic expenses advertising costs in the period incurred, net of earned cooperative
manufacturer credits that represent reimbursements for specific, identifiable and incremental advertising costs.
Advertising expense amounted to $53.5 million, $58.7 million and $64.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, and has been classified as selling, general and administrative
expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. .

Sonic has cooperative advertising reimbursement agreements with approximately one-fourth of automobile
manufacturers. In general, these cooperative programs require Sonic to provide the manufacturer with support for
qualified, actual advertising expenditures in order to receive reimbursement under these cooperative agreements.
It is uncertain whether or not Sonic would maintain the same level of advertising expenditures if these
manufacturers discontinued their cooperative programs. Cooperative manufacturer credits classified as an offset
to advertising costs were $4.8 million, $1 1.8 million and $16.2 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

Segment Information—Sonic sells similar products and services that exhibit similar economic
characteristics, uses similar processes in selling products and services, and sells its products and services to
similar classes of customers. As a result of this and the way Sonic manages its business, Sonic has aggregated its
operating segments into a single segment for purposes of reporting financial condition and results of operations.

2. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS
Acquisitions

Sonic’s growth strategy is focused on metropolitan markets, predominantly in the Southeast, Southwest,
Midwest and California. Where practicable, Sonic also seeks to acquire stable franchises that Sonic believes have
above average sales prospects.
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During 2006, Sonic acquired eight franchises located in Tysons Corner, VA, Irving. TX, Los Angeles, CA,
Santa Monica, CA and Fremont, CA for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $110.4 million in cash, net
of cash acquired, funded by cash from operations and borrowings under the revolving credit facilities. The
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006 includes preliminary allocations of the
purchase price of these 2006 acquisitions to the assets and labilities acquired based on their estimated fair
market values at the date of acquisition and are subject to final adjustment. As a result of these acquisitions,
Sonic has recorded the following:

« $85.1 million of net assets relating to dealership operations;
= $5.0 million of intangible assets representing rights acquired under franchise agreements; and
*  $46.7 miilion of goodwill, all of which is expected to be tax deductible

*  §$10.7 million of intangible assets representing favorable leases with weighted average lives of 11 years;
and

»  $37.1 million of notes payable—-floor plan.

During 2005, Sonic acquired five franchises for approximately $138.8 million in cash, net of cash acquired.
During 2004, Sonic acquired 13 franchises for approximately $268.7 million in cash, net of cash acquired.

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents a summary of consolidated results of
operations as if all of the 2006 acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of 2003, after giving effect to certain
adjustments, including interest expense on acquisition debt and related income tax effects. The pro forma
financial information does not give effect to adjustments relating to net reductions in floorplan interest expense
resulting from renegotiated floorplan financing agreements or to reductions in salaries and fringe benefits of
former owners or officers of acquired dealerships who have not been retained by Sonic or whose salaries have
been reduced pursuant to employment agreements with Sonic. The pro forma results have been prepared for
comparative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have
occurred had the 2006 acquisitions actually been completed at the beginning of the periods presented. The pro
forma results are also not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006

(dollars in thousands,
except per share amounts)

Total FEVENUES . ...t e e e e $7,571,241  $8,015,724

Grossprofit ... e 1,151,746 1,237,723

Income from continuing operations before taxes ............ 169,230 165,150

NetINCOME .. e e e e et 90,059 83,597

Diluted earnings pershare .. ........ .. ... . o el 2.08 1.90
Dispositions

During 2006, Sonic sold 12 franchises. These disposals generated cash of $51.0 million and resulted in a net
gain of $3.7 million which is included in discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Income for 2006. During 2004 and 2005, Sonic completed seven and 22 franchise dispositions, respectively.
These disposals generated cash of $55.0 million and $61.6 million, respectively. The 2004 dispositions resulted
in a net loss of $0.8 miliion, while the 2005 dispositions resulted in a net gain of $0.4 million.
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In conjunction with franchise dispositions, Sonic generally agrees to indemnify the buyers from certain
liabilities and costs arising from operations or events that occurred prior to sale but which may or may not be
known at the time of sale, including environmental liabilities and liabilities associated from the breach of
representations or warranties made under the agreements. See Note 11 for further discussion.

In addition to the dispositions described above, as of December 31, 2006, Sonic had approved, but not
completed, the disposition of 30 additional franchises. These franchises have been identified as held for sale
because of unprofitable operations or various strategic considerations. The operating results of these franchises
are included in discontinued operations in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. Assets to be
disposed of in connection with franchises not yet sold, which have been classified in assets held for sale in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, consist of the following:

December 31, December 31,

2005 - 2006

(dollars in thousands)
Inventories .. ... ...t $54,890 $106,581
Property and equipient, qet . ...................0o.u.... 8,737 32,665
Goodwill ... 5.210 12,325
Franchiseassets ....... .. ... .. ... . . . . . 5,000 9,000
Assetsheldforsale ............... ... ... .. .. .. 0. ... $73,837 $160,571

Liabilities to be disposed in connection with these dispositions are comprised entirely of notes payable—
floor plan and are classified as liabilities associated with assets held for sale on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Results associated with franchises classified as discontinued operations were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
{(dollars in thousands)
Revenues .............. ... .00 innion., $1,419,084 31,102,705  $734.338
Franchise agreement impairments .. ........... 1,075 — 2,525
Leaseexitcharges ......................... — 649 1,577
Property impairment charges ................. 2,427 1,395 7.356
{Gain)/Loss on disposal of franchises .......... 960 (353) (3,541)
Pre-tax losses ........ .. ... ... .. ... ... .... 2,271 16,647 26,090

Sonic allocates corporate level interest to discontinued operations based on the net assets of the discontinued
operations group. Interest allocated to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and
2006 was $ 2.4 mitlion, $1.9 million and $2.2 million, respectively.
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3. INVENTORIES AND RELATED NOTES PAYABLE—FLOOR PLAN

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,
2005 2006
(dollars in thousands)
New vehicles .. ... e, $ 801,116 $ 827.630
Usedvehicles .. ... i e 150,040 145,028
Parts and accessories . ... ... e e 56,660 57,266
OtheT . e e e 63,531 68,641
$1,071,347  $1,098,565
Less inventories classified as assets held forsale ............ (54,890) (106,581)
INVENLOTIES .« ot it ey e $1,016,457 % 991,984

Sonic finances all of its new and certain of its used vehicle inventory through standardized floor plan
facilities. In conjunction with entering into a new credit agreement as discussed in Note 6, Sonic terminated
certain of its floor plan facilities and entered into new arrangements with a syndicate of financial institutions and
manufacturer captive finance companies. As part of the new credit agreement, Sonic may also finance certain
used vehicle inventory which in the past was financed through its revolving credit facility.

The new and used floor plan facilities bear interest at variable rates based on prime and LIBOR. The
weighted average interest rate for Sonic’s new vehicle floor plan facilities was 4.41% and 5.98% for the year
ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Sonic's floor plan interest expense related to the new vehicle
floor plan arrangements is partially offset by amounts received from manufacturers, in the form of floor plan
assistance. Floor plan assistance received is capitalized in inventory and charged against cost of sales when the
associated inventory is sold. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, Sonic recognized
approximately $40.6 million, $40.9 million and $42.2 million, respectively, in manufacturer assistance. As a
result of manufacturer assistance recognized, the effective borrowing rate under Sonic’s new floor plan facilities
of was approximately 0.3% and 1.96% for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.

The average interest rate for Sonic’s used vehicle floor plan facility was 6.3% for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

The new and used floor plan facilities are collateralized by vehicle inventories and other assets, excluding
franchise agreements, of the relevant dealership subsidiary. The new and used floor plan facilities contain a
number of covenants, including, amoeng others, covenants restricting Sonic with respect to the creation of liens
and changes in ownership, officers and key management personnel. Sonic was in compliance with all restrictive
covenants as of December 31, 2006.
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4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consists of the following:

December 31,

2005 2006

(dollars in thousands)
Land . e $ 31,871 $ 25016
Building and improvements .. ............... ... ... ... .... 101,702 143,345
Office equipment and fixtures ... ... . ... .. ... ... ....... 51,802 65,621
Parts and service equipment .. ................. ... . . ... .. 38,059 44,778
Company vehicles . ...... ... ... ... . . . . . . 9,747 9,519
Construction in Progeess . ...... ..ottt 79,488 70,594
Total,atcost ............. ... . . ., 312,669 358,873
Less accumulated depreciation ............. ... . ou. ... {60,534) (79,459)
Subtotal ... 252,135 279,414
Lessassetsheldforsale .............. ... ccuiuiu i, (8,737 (32,665)
Less construction in progress expected to be sold in sale-leaseack

trANSACHIONS - . ..o (95,131) (26,198)

Property and equipment, net ..., ................coeeii.... $148,267  $220,551

Interest capitalized in conjunction with construction projects was approximately $2.8 million, $2.3 million
and $3.7 miilion for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31, 2006,
commitments for facility construction projects totaled approximately $13.4 million.

Construction in progress expected to be sold in sale-leaseback transactions represent dealership facilities
that are expected to be completed and sold within one year in sale-leaseback transactions. Under the terms of the
sale-leaseback transactions, Sonic sells the properties to a third party entity and enters into long-term operating
leases on the facilities. Sonic sold $49.0 million, $14.5 million and $26.6 million in 2004, 2005 and 2006,
respectively, in dealership equipment and properties in sale-leaseback transactions which resulted in no material
gains and losses. Sonic has no continuing involvement or obligations under these arrangements other than lease
payments.
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5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The changes in the carrying amount of franchise agreements and goodwill for the years ended December 31,

2005 and 2006 were as follows (dollars in thousands);

Franchise

Agreements Goodwill
Balance, December 31, 2004 .. oo $80,500  $1,056,924
Additions through current year acquisitions ................. .. ... ... ... . ..... 9,700 69,818
Prior year acquisition allocations . .........co.ut it (2.600) 367)
Reductions from sales of franchises . ... ... ... . . it (3.400) (6,886)
Reclassification from assets held forsale . .. ...... .. .. . . . .. .. . .o i ... 500 3,049
Balance, December 31, 2005 . ... .. e $84,700  $1,122,538
Additions through current year acquisitions . ... ... ..... ..ottt nrnnen ... 5,000 46,737
Prior year acquisition allocations . ....... ... .. .. ... e (700) 101
Impairment expense {discontinued operations) ..... ..., (2,525} -
Reductions from sales of franchises . ........ ... ... o (2,775) (6.833)
Reclassification toassetsheld forsale . ... ... ... ... ... i, (4,000 (7,115)
Balance, December 31,2006 . ... ... $79,700  $1,155428

Franchise asset impairment expense of $ 2.5 million was recorded within discontinued operations in the year
ended December 31, 2006. The impairments relate to management’s estimate that the recorded franchise assets

relating to several franchises held for sale will not be recovered through the sale of those franchises.

Definite life intangible assets consist of the following:

December 31,
2005 2006
(dollars in thousands)
Lease agreCments .. ... .. ... .t e $4,704  $15,853
Less accumulated amortization . ... ..., .. ...t (708) {1,417}
Definite life intangibles, net ... .. ...ttt $3996 $14,436

Franchise values and definite life intangible assets are classified as Other Intangible Assets, net on the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Amortization expense for definite life intangible assets was $0.3 million, $0.3 million and $0.7 million for
the years ended December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Future amortization expense is as follows:

Year ending December 31, (dollars in thousands)
2007 $ 1,091
2008 1,164
2000 e 1,177
L 1,187
7,011 1 1,269
Thereafter . ... ... 8,548

Total . o e $14,436
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6. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debi consists of the following:

December 31
2005 2006
{dollars in thousands)

$350 million 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bearing interest at 2.00 percentage

points above LIBOR (5.32% at December 31, 2006}, collateralized by all assets of

B T $§  — 3520086
$550 miltion 2001 Revolving Credit Facility bearing interest at 2.55 percentage points

above LIBOR (4.39% at December 31, 2005), collateralized by all assets of Sonic .... 131,746 -
Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 8.623% maturing August 15, 2013, net of

net discount of $2,722 and $2,470, respectively .. ............... ... ... . . ... 272,278 272,530
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 5.25%, maturing May 7, 2009,

net of discount of $2,063 and $1.489, respectively . .......... ... ... ... ... .. ..., 128,037 128,611
Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes bearing interest at 4.25%, maturing

November 30, 2015, redeemable on or after October 31, 2010, net of discount of

$3.926 and $3.202, respectively ... ... e 156,074 156,798
Notes payable to a finance company bearing interest from 9.52% to §0.52% (with a

weighted average of 10.19%), with combined monthly principal and interest payments

of $325, maturing November 1, 2015 through September 1, 2016, and collateralized by

letters of credit, including premium of $5,701 and $4,840, respectively ............. 30,197 27,905
Fair value of Variable Swaps . ...... .. ... e (3.684) (4,710)
Other notes payable (primarily equipmentnotes) . ... .............oveuuueeennno... 410 114

$715,058 $601,334
Less current MatUrities .. ...t e e e (2,747 (2,707)
Long-termdebt ... .. . . $712,311 $598,627

The indenture governing Sonic's 8.625% senior subordinated notes limits Sonic’s ability 10 pay quarterly
cash dividends in excess of $0.10 per share. Sonic may only pay quarterly cash dividends in excess of this
amount if Sonic complies with Section 1009 of the indenture governing these notes, which was filed as Exhibit
44 to the Registration Statement on Form $-4 (Reg. No. 333-109426). The indenture governing Sonic’s
convertible senior subordinated notes (the “Convertibles™) does not limit Sonic’s ability to pay dividends.
Sonic’s 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends so long as no event of default or unmatured default (as
defined in the credit agreement) has occurred and is continuing and provided that, after giving effect to the
payment of a dividend, Sonic remains in compliance with the other terms and conditions of the credit agreement. |

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Year ending December 31, {Dollars in thousands)
2007 e $ 2707
2008 . e 2,842
2000 . e 131,353
2000 . e 179,777
L 3,051
Thereafter ... ... .. . . 281,604

Total ... . $601,334
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2006 Credit Facility

On February 17, 2006, Sonic entered into a new four-year syndicated credit facility (the “2006 Credit
Facility”) with 14 financial institutions, including three manufacturer-affiliated finance companies, providing for
up to $1.2 billion in revolving credit and floor plan financing. The 2006 Credit Facility replaces the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, (which was terminated February 17, 2006) and a portion of Sonic’s
existing floor plan financing arrangements.

The 2006 Credit Facility has a borrowing limit of $1.2 billion, which may be expanded up to $1.45 billion in
total credit availability upon satisfaction of certain conditions. Under the terms of the 2006 Credit Facility, up to
$700.0 million is available for new vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the *2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility™}, up to $150.0 million is available for used vehicle inventory floor plan financing (the “2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility”) and up to $350.0 million is available for working capital and general corporate
purposes (the “2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility™}). The amount available for borrowing under the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the aggregate face amount of any
outstanding letters of credit. The 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility matures on February 17, 2010. The 2006
New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility mature on the earlier of
February 17, 2010 or upon demand by the administrative agent at the request of more than 80% of the lenders
under those facilities.

At December 31, 2006, our revolving credit facility (part of the New Credit Facility) had a borrowing limit
of $350.0 million (the “Revolving Credit Facility™), subject to a borrowing base calculated on the basis of our
receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of certain additional collateral by one of our affiliates (the
borrowing base was approximately $426.3 million at December 31, 2006). The amount available to be borrowed
under the Revolving Credit Facility is reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the cumulative face amount of
outstanding letters of credit. At December 31, 2006, we had $77.8 million in letters of credit outstanding and
$252.1 million of borrowing availability.

The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Revolving Credit Sub-Facility bear interest at a specified
percentage above LIBOR according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by Sonic’s Total Senior
Secured Debt to EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the
performance-based pricing grid is from 1.75% above LIBOR to 2.75% above LIBOR. The weighted average rate
of the 2006 Revelving Credit Sub-Facility during the year ended December 31, 2006 was 6.81%. In addition,
there is a quarterly commitment fee payable by Sonic on the unused portion of the 2006 Revolving Credit
Sub-Facility according to a performance-based pricing grid determined by Sonic’s Total Sentor Secured Debt to
EBITDA Ratio as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal quarter. The range of the performance-
based pricing grid for the quarterly commitment fee is 0.20% to 0.45% on the unused portion of the 2006
Revolving Credit Sub-Facility. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility
bear interest at 1.009% above LIBOR. The amounts outstanding under the 2006 Used Vehicle Floor Plan
Sub-Facility bear interest at 1.125% above LIBOR. In addition, there are quarterly commitment fees of 0.20%
payable by Sonic on the unused portion of both the 2006 New Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility and the 2006 Used
Vehicle Floor Plan Sub-Facility. Under the terms of collateral documents entered into with the lenders under the
2006 Credit Facility, outstanding balances under the 2006 Credit Facility are secured by a pledge of substantially
all of Sonic’s assets and the assets of substantially all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries, which domestic
subsidiaries also guarantee Sonic’s obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, and the pledge of certain
additional collateral by one of Sonic’s affiliates. The collateral for the New Credit Facility also includes the
pledge of the stock or equity interests of Sonic’s dealership franchise subsidiaries, except where such a pledge is
prohibited by the applicable vehicle manufacturer.
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Sonic agreed under the 2006 Credit Facility not to pledge any assets to any third party, subject to certain
stated exceptions, including floor plan financing arrangements. In addition, the 2006 Credit Facility contains
certain negative covenants, including covenants which could restrict or prohibit the payment of dividends, capital
expenditures and material dispositions of assets as well as other customary covenants and default provisions.
Specifically, the 2006 Credit Facility permits cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and Class B common stock so
long as no event of default or unmatured default (as defined in the New Credit Facility) has occurred and is
continuing and provided that, after giving effect to the payment of a dividend, Sonic remains in compliance with
other terms and conditions of the 2006 Credit Facility. Financial covenants include required specified ratios of:

Covenant Required
Consolidated liquidity ratio ... ... ... . .. . e >1.15
Consolidated fixed charge coverage ratio ......... . .. .cvriiiiinn s > 1.20
Consolidated total senior secured debt to EBITDAratio . .................... <2.25

The 2006 Credit Facility contains events of default, including cross-defaults to other material indebtedness,
change of control events and events of default customary for syndicated commercial credit facilities. Upon the
occurrence of an event of default, Sonic could be required to immediately repay all outstanding amounts under
the 2006 Credit Facility.

On February 17, 2006, in conjunction with the entrance into the 2006 Credit Facility, Sonic and
substantially all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries entered into collateral documents with the lenders, pursuant to
which Sonic and substantially all of Sonic’s domestic subsidiaries granted a security interest in substantially all
their assets to secure Sonic’s obligations under the 2006 Credit Facility, including a pledge of the stock or equity
interests of Sonic’s dealership franchise subsidiaries except where such a pledge is prohibited by the applicable
vehicle manufacturer. This grant of security interests replaces the grant under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility,
as amended,

2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as Amended

Prior to entering into the 2006 Credit Facility, Sonic utilized the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as
amended. This facility was with Ford Credit, DaimlerChrysler Financial, Toyota Financial, Bank of America, JP
Morgan Chase Bank and Merrill Lynch and had a borrowing limit of $550.0 million, subject to a borrowing base
calculated on the basis of receivables, inventory and equipment and a pledge of certain additional collateral by
one of Sonic’s affiliates. The amount available to be borrowed under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as
amended, was reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis by the cumulative face amount of outstanding letters of credit.
The amounts outstanding under the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, bore interest at 2.55 percentage
points above LIBOR. The 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, included an annual commitment fee
equal 1o 0.25% of the unused portion of the 2001 Revolving Facility, as amended. Balances under the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, were guaranteed by Sonic’s operating domestic subsidiaries.

Senior Subordinated 8.625% Notes

In August 2003, Sonic issued $200.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 8.625% senior subordinated
notes due 2013 (the “8.625% Notes”) in a private offering to qualified institutional buyers as defined by the
Securities Act of 1933 (the ““Act”). The net proceeds, before expenses, of approximately $194.3 million together
with an advance from the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, were used to redeem all of the 11% senior
subordinated notes due 2008 (the “11% Notes™) for $194.6 million which included accrued but unpaid interest
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and the redemption premium of 5.5% on September 10, 2003. The 8.625% Notes are unsecured obligations that
rank equal in right of payment to all of Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on
August 15, 2013 and are redeemable at Sonic’s option after August 15, 2008. In addition, up to 35% of the
aggregate principal amount of the 8.625% Notes may be redeemed on or before August 15, 2006 with net cash
proceeds from certain equity offerings. Sonic’s obligations under the 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by Sonic’s
operating domestic subsidiaries.

In November 2003, Sonic issued an additional $75.0 million in aggregate principal amount of the 8.625%
Notes in an add-on private offering to qualified institutional buyers as defined by the Act. The net proceeds,
before expenses, of approximately $78.9 million, were used to pay down the 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as
amended. This $75.0 million issuance contains the same provisions and terms as the $200.0 million issuance.

The indentures governing the 8.625% Notes contain certain specified restrictive and required financial
covenants. Sonic has agreed not to pledge any assets to any third party except under certain limited
circumstances. Sonic also has agreed to certain other limitations or prohibitions concerning the incurrence of
other indebtedness, capital stock, guaranties, asset sales. investments, cash dividends to shareholders,
distributions and redemptions. Specifically, the indenture governing Sonic's 8.625% Notes limits Sonic’s ability
to pay quarterly cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and B common stock in excess of $0.10 per share. Sonic may
only pay quarterly cash dividends on Sonic’s Class A and B common stock if Sonic complies with Section 1009
of the indenture governing the 8.625% Notes, which was filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Sonic’s Registration Statement
on Form S-4 (Reg. No. 333-109426). Sonic was in compliance with all restrictive covenants as of December 31,
2006.

5.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In 2002, Sonic issued $149.5 million in aggregate principal amount of 5.25% convertible senior
subordinated notes due 2009 (the “2002 Convertibles™) with net proceeds, before expenses. of approximately
$145.1 million. The net proceeds were used to repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under the 2001
Revolving Credit Facility, as amended. During 2002, Sonic repurchased $19.4 million in aggregate principal of
the 2002 Coenvertibles. The 2002 Convertibles are unsecured obligations that rank equal in right of payment to all
of Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness, mature on May 7, 2009 and are redeemable at
Sonic’s option after May 7, 2005. Sonic’s obligations under the 2002 Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of
Sonic’s subsidiaries.

The 2002 Convertibles are convertible into shares of Class A common stock, at the option of the holder, if
as of the last day of the preceding fiscal quarter, the closing sale price of the Class A commen stock for at least
20 trading days in a period of 30 consecutive trading days ending on the last trading-day of such preceding fiscal
quarter is more than 110% of the conversion price per share of Class A common stock on the last day of such
preceding fiscal quarter. If this condition is satisfied, then the 2002 Convertibles will be convertible at any time,
at the option of the holder, through maturity. The initial conversion price per share is $46.87, and will be subject
to adjustment for certain distributions on, or other changes in Sonic’s Class A common stock, if any, prior to the
cenversion date. In addition, on or before May 7, 2007, a holder also may convert the 2002 Convertibles into
shares of the Class A common stock at any time after a 10 consecutive trading-day period in which the average
of the trading day prices for the 2002 Convertibles for that 10 trading-day period is less than 103% of the average
conversion value for the 2002 Convertibles during that period. The conversion value is equal to the product of the
closing sale price for Sonic’s Class A common stock on a given day multiplied by the then current conversion
rate, which is the number of shares of Class A common stock into which each $1,000 principal amount of 2002
Convertibles is then convertible. Neither of these conversion features were satisfied during 2006.
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4.25% Convertible Senior Subordinated Notes

In November and December 2005, Sonic issued $160.0 million in aggregate principal amount of 2005
Convertibles with net proceeds. before expenses, of approximately $156.2 million, The 2005 Convertibles bear
interest at an annual rate of 4.25% until November 30, 2010 and 4.75% thereafter. The net proceeds were used to
repay a portion of the amounts outstanding under Sonic’s 2001 Revolving Credit Facility, as amended, and to pay
the net cost of convertible note hedge and warrant transactions. The 2005 Convertibles are unsecured obligations
that rank equal in right of payment to all of Sonic’s existing and future senior subordinated indebtedness. mature
on November 30, 2015 and are redeemable on or after November 30, 2010. Sonic’s obligations under the 2005
Convertibles are not guaranteed by any of Sonic’s subsidiaries. Holders of the 2005 Convertibles may convert
them into cash and shares of Sonic’s Class A common stock at an initial conversion rate of 41.4185 shares per
$1,000 of principal amount, subject to distributions on, or other changes in Sonic’s Class A common stock, if
any. prior to the conversion date. The 2005 Convertibles are convertible into cash and shares of Sonic’s Class A
common stock if prior to October 31, 2010, during the five business day period after any five consecutive trading
day period in which the trading price per $1,000 principal amount of 2005 Convertibles was less than 103% of
the product of the closing price of Sonic’s Class A common stock and the applicable conversion rate for the 2005
Convertibles; if Sonic calls the 2005 Convertibles for redemption; or upon the occurrence of certain corporate
transactions; or on or after October 31, 2010. Upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles, Sonic will be required
to deliver cash equal to the lesser of the aggregate principal amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted
and Sonic’s total conversion obligation, If Sonic’s total conversion obligation exceeds the aggregate principal
amount of the 2005 Convertibles being converted, Sanic will deliver shares of Class A common stock to the
extent of the excess amount, if any. None of the conversion features on the 2005 Convertibles were triggered in
2006. Sonic used $18.5 million of the net proceeds from the sale of the 2005 Convertibles to pay the net cost of
convertible note hedge and warrant transactions entered into with the initial purchasers of the 2005 Convertibles.
The convertible note hedge and warrant transactions were designed to increase the effective conversion price per
share of Sonic’s Class A common stock from $24.14 to $33.00 and, therefore, mitigate the potential dilution
upon conversion of the 2005 Convertibles at the time of conversion. See Note 1, “Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities” for a discussion regarding the convertible note hedge and warrant transactions.

The Mortgage Facility

Sonic had a revolving real estate and construction (the “Construction Loan”) and mortgage refinancing (the
“Permanent Loan") line of credit with Toyota Credit (collectively, “The Mortgage Facility™) with $100.0 million
of borrowing availability. There were no amounts outstanding under the Mortgage Facility at December 31. 2005
and 2006. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, the Mortgage Facility was terminated.

Notes Payable to a Finance Company

Three notes payable totaling $26.6 million in aggregate principal were assumed in connection with an
acquisition during 2004 (the “Assumed Notes™). Sonic recorded the Assumed Notes at fair value using an interest
rate of 5.35%. The interest rate used to calculate the fair value was based on a quoted market price for notes with
similar terms as of the date of assumption. As a result of calculating the fair value, a premium of $7.3 million
was recorded that will be amortized over the lives of the Assumed Notes. At December 31, 2006, the principal
balance on the Assumed Notes was $23.1 million.

Subsidiary Guarantees

Balances outstanding under Sonic’s 8.625% Notes are guaranteed by ail of Sonic’s operating domestic
subsidiaries. These guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several. The parent company has no
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independent assets or operations. The non-domestic and non-operating subsidiaries that are not guarantors are
considered to be minor as defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC™).

7. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes from continuing operations consists of the following:

2004 2005 2006
Current:

Federal ... .. ... ... ... ... . ... i, $35,830 331,123 $40,919
State ... [ 6,734 3,883 7,594
42,564 35,006 48.513
Deferred ... .. .. 11,376 27,539 18,278

Total provision for income taxes for continuing
OPETAtiONS .. . ...ttt ittt $53.940 $62,545 $66,791

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate with Sonic’s federal and state overall effective
income tax rate from continuing operations is as follows:

2004 2005 2006

Statwtory federal rate ... ... .. 35.00% 35.00% 35.00%
Effective state InCOME AX TALE . . . . . ... it nieee i, 2.96 2.01 3.46
L0 111 7= — 0.36 1.93
Effective taX TG . ...ttt e e e e e e e e 37.96% 37.37% 40.39%

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Significant
components of Sonic’s deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31 are as follows:

2005 2006
{dollars in thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Allowance forbaddebts . .. ... ... .. . . . ... $ 1417 % 791
Accruals and reserves ..o i e e 25,650 32,428
Net operating loss carryforwards . ........... .. ... ... 8,019 9,306
Olher . e e 46 46
Total deferred tax assets . ..., 35,132 42,571
Deferred tax liabilities:
Basis difference ininventory . .......... .. ... oL (5,300) (4.485)
Basis difference in property and equipment . ............. (14,963) (13,783)
Basis difference ingoodwill .. .. ... ... .. .. o {128,794) (147,312)
State valuation allowance .. .......................... — (143)
Other ... (3,015) (2.368)
Total deferred tax liability .......... ... .. ... . ... (152,072) (168,091)
Net deferred tax liability ............ ... ... .. ... $(116,940y  $(125,520)
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Net current deferred tax assets are recorded in other current assets on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2006, Sonic had state net operating loss carryforwards of $239.3 million
that will expire between 2014 and 2026.

8. RELATED PARTIES
Registration Rights Agreement

Prior to the Company’s initial public offering, Sonic signed a Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
June 30, 1997 with Sonic Financial Corporation (“SFC™), O. Bruton Smith, B. Scott Smith and William S. Egan
{collectively, the “Class B Registration Rights Holders”). SFC currently owns 8,881,250 shares of Class B
common stock; O. Bruton Smith, 2,171,250 shares; and B. Scott Smith, 976,875 shares: all of which are covered
by the Registration Rights Agreement. The Egan Group LLC, an assignee of William S. Egan, also owns certain
shares of Class A common stock to which the Registration Rights Agreement applies. If, among other things
provided in Sonic’s charter, offers and sales of shares of Class B common stock are registered with the SEC, then
such shares will automatically convert into a like number of shares of Class A common stock.

The Class B Registration Rights Holders have certain limited piggyback registration rights under the
Registration Rights Agreement. These rights permit them to have their shares of Sonic’s common stock included
in any Sonic registration statement registering Class A common stock, except for registrations on Form $-4,
relating to exchange offers and certain other transactions, and Form S$-8, relating to employee stock
compensation plans. The Registration Rights Agreement expires in November 2007. SFC is controlled by O.
Bruton Smith.

Other Transactions

Sonic leases office space in Charlotte from a subsidiary of SFC for a majority of its headquarters personnel.
Annual aggregate rent under this lease was approximately $0.6 million in 2004, $0.5 million in 2005 and
$0.6 million in 2006.

Sonic rents various aircraft owned by SFC, subject to their availability, for business-related travel by Sonic
executives. Sonic incurred costs of approximately $0.5 million in 2004, $0.8 million in 2005 and $1.2 millicn in
2006 for the use of these aircrafi.

Certain of Sonic’s dealerships purchase the Z-Max oil additive product from Oil Chem Research Company,
a subsidiary of Speedway Moltorsports, Inc. (“SMI") whose Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is O, Bruton
Smith, for resale to service customers of Sonic’s dealerships in the ordinary course of business. Total purchases
from Qil Chem by Sonic dealerships totaled approximately $1.4 million in 2004, $1.5 mitlion in 2005 and
$1.4 million in 2006.

Sonic donates cash throughout the year to Speedway Children’s Charities, a non-profit organization founded
by O. Bruton Smith. O, Bruton Smith and B. Scott Smith are both board members of Speedway Children’s
Charities. Donations to this organization amounted to $0.2 million, $0.4 million and $0.3 million in 2004, 2005
and 2006, respectively.

9. CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND PER SHARE DATA

Preferred Stock—Sonic has 3 million shares of “blank check” preferred stock authorized with such
designations, rights and preferences as may be determined from time to time by the Board of Directors. The

62




SONIC AUTOMOTIVE, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Board of Directors has designated 300,000 shares of preferred stock as Class A convertible preferred stock, par
value $0.10 per share (the “Preferred Stock™) which is divided into 100,000 shares of Series I Preferred Stock,
100,000 shares of Series 11 Preferred Stock, and 100,000 shares of Series I Preferred Stock. There were no
shares of Preferred Stock issued or outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2006.

Common Stock—Sonic has two classes of common stock. Sonic has authorized [00.0 million shares of
Class A common stock at a par value of $0.01 per share. Class A common stock entitles its holder to one vote per
share. There were 29,945,785 and 30,691,576 shares outstanding at December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively.
Sonic has also authorized 30 million shares of Class B common stock at a par value of $.01 per share. Class B
common stock entitles its holder to ten votes per share, except in certain circumstances, Each share of Class B
common stock is convertible into one share of Class A common stock either upon voluntary conversion at the
option of the holder, or automatically upon the occurrence of certain events, as provided in Sonic’s charter.

Hedge and Warrants on 4.25% Convertible Notes—In connection with the sale of $160.0 million of 4.25%
convertible notes in the fourth quarter of 2005, Sonic executed a hedge and sold warrants to purchase shares of
Sonic Class A common stock designed to mitigate the dilutive effect of the delivery of Sonic’s Class A common
stock upon conversion of these convertible notes. See Note 6,

Share Repurchases—Sonic’s Board of Directors has authorized Sonic to expend up to $185.0 million to
repurchase shares of its Class A common stock or redeem securities convertible into Class A common stock, As
of December 31, 2006, Sonic had repurchased a total of 11,198,964 shares of Class A common stock at an
average price per sharc of approximately $14.20 and had redeemed 13,801.5 shares of Class A convertible
preferred stock at an average price of $1,000 per share. As of December 31, 2006, Sonic had $12.2 million
remaining under the Board’s authorization.

Per Share Data—The calculation of diluted earnings per share considers the potential dilutive effect of
options and shares under Sonic’s stock compensation plans, Class A common stock purchase warrants, the 2002
Convertibles and the 2005 Convertibles (see Notes 1 and 6). The following table illustrates the dilutive effect of
such items on earnings per share:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2004

Income Loss From
From Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Net Income
Per Per Per
Share Share Share

Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount

(amounts in thousands except per share amounts}

Basic Eamings PerShare ... ... ... el 41,375  $88,145 $2.13 $(2.074) %005 386,071 $2.08
Effect of Dilmive Securities:

Contingently Convertible Debt (2002 Convertibles) ....... 2,776 4,307 260 4,567

Stock CompensationPlans ... ... .. ... ... 1.066

Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share ............... ... ... 45217  $92452 $2.04 $(1.814)  5(0.04) 390,638 52.00
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Income Loss From
From Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Net Income
Per Per Per
Share Share Share

Shares Amount Amount Amoumt Amount Amount Amount
(amounts in thousands except per share amounts)

Basic Earnings PerShare .. ................ ... ... ...... 41,817 $104,844  $2.51  $(12,983) 3$(0.31) $91.861 $2.20
Effect of Dilutive Securities:

Contingently Convertible Debe (2002 Convertibles) . . . .. . 2,776 4,345 194 4,539

Stock Compensation Plans .. ................... ..., 940
Diluted Earnings (Loss) PerShare . ....................... 45,533 $109,189  $240  $(12,78%) $(0.28) $96,400 $2.12

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Income Laoss From
From Continuing Discontinued
Operations Operations Net Income
Per Per Per
Share Share Share

Shares Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
(amounts in thousands except per share amounts)

Basic Earnings PerShare . .......... .. . ... . . L. 42,336 % 98,560  $2.33  $(17.449) $(0.41) $81,117  $1.92
Effect of Dilutive Securities:
Contingently Convertible Debt (2002 Convertibles) . ... .. 2,776 4,202 154 4,356
Contingently Convertible Debt (2005 Convertibles) .. . . .. 302
Stock CompensationPlans ... .............,.......... 851 .
Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share ... ....... ... ... ... ... 46,265 §$102,768  $2.22 $(17,295) $(0.37) $85473 $1.85

In addition to the stock options included in the tables above, options to purchase approximately 1.9 million,
1.7 million and 0.6 million shares of Class A common stock were outstanding during the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, but were not included in the computation of diluted net income
per share because the options were antidilutive.

19. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Substantially all of the employees of Senic are eligible to participate in a 401(k} plan. In accordance with
the formula in the 401(k) plan agreement, contributions by Sonic to the 401(k} plan were $4.6 million in 2004,
$4.5 million in 2005 and $5.6 million in 2006.

Stock Compensation Plans

Effective January 1, 2006, Sonic adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, using the modified
prospective application transitien method. Prior to Sonic’s adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), benefits of tax
deductions in excess of recognized compensation costs were reported as operating cash flows on the statement of
cash flows. SFAS No. 123(R) requires excess tax benefits to be reported as a financing cash inflow rather than as
a reduction of taxes paid on the statement of cash flows.

Sonic currently has four stock compensation plans: the Sonic Automotive, Inc. 2004 Stock Incentive Plan
(the “2004 Plan™), the Sonic Automotive, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “1997 Plan”), the First America
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Automotive, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan (the “First America Plan™), and the 2005 Formula Restricted Stock
Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the “2005 Formula Plan”) (collectively, the *“Stock Plans™).

The 2004 Plan and the 1997 Plan were adopted by the Board of Directors in order to attract and retain key
personne! and currently authorize the issuance of options to purchase 2.0 millien and 9.0 miilion shares of
Class A common stock, respectively. Under the 2004 Plan and the 1997 Plan, options to purchase shares of
Class A common stock may be granted to key employees of Sonic and its subsidiaries and to officers, directors,
consultants and other individuals providing services to Sonic. The options are granted at the fair market value of
Sonic’s Class A common stock at the date of grant. vest over a period ranging from six months to three years, are
exercisable upon vesting and expire ten years from the date of grant. The 2004 Plan also authorizes the issuance
of resiricted stock. Restricted stock issued under the 2004 plan generally vests at the end of a three year term.
The 2005 Fermula Plan provides for grants of restricted stock to non-employee directors and restrictions on those
shares generally expire one year from the date of grant. Individuals receiving restricted shares under both the
2005 Formuia Plan and the 2004 Plan have voting rights and receive dividends on unvested shares. The First
America Plan was assumed by Sonic in connection with the purchase of First America Automotive in 1999.
Although Sonic does not issue stock-based awards under the First America Plan, options to purchase Sonic’s
Class A common stock were outstanding under this plan during the year ended December 31, 2006, Sonic issues
new shares of Class A common stock to employees and directors to satisfy its option exercise and stock grant
obligations. To offset the effects of these transactions, Sonic will periodically buy back shares of Class A
common stock after considering cash flow, market conditions and other factors.

A summary of the status of the options related to the Stock Plans is presented below:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average  Remaining Aggregate
Options Exercise Price Exercise  Contractual Intrinsic
Outstanding Per Share Price Term Value
{in thousands) (in years) (in thousands}
Balance—December 31,2005 .. ........ 5,531 $ 6.00—37.50 $19.12
Granted .......... ... i 662 23.30—26.42 2542
Exercised .. ...... ... ... ... .. ... (1,154) 6.00—26.92 16.15
Forfeited ............ ... ... .ot (303) 12.41—37.50 26.28
Balance—December 31,2006 .......... 4,734 $ 7.01—37.50 $20.24 6.0 $53,323
Exercisable ....... ... ... ... ... 3,351 $ 7.01—37.50 $19.42 5.0 $36,807
December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair Value of Options Granted ... ............. $ 943 $ 750 § 7.87
Intrinsic Value of Options Exercised .......... ... ... ... ... ... oL, 12,460 3,565 11,972
Fair Value of Shares Vested . . . ... i e e et iai e e 8,224 14,135 4,356

Sonic recognized compensation expense within selling, general and administrative expenses related to the
options in the Stock Plans of $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Tax benefits recognized related
to the compensation expenses were $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. No compensation
expense related to these plans was recorded in the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005. The total
compensation cost related to unvested options not yet recognized at December 31, 2006 was $6.1 million and is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 1.5 years. Sonic received $18.6 million in cash from
the exercise of stock options during the year ended December 31, 2006. Sonic’s tax benefit associated with these
stock option exercises was $4.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), Sonic accounted for stock option grants under the recognition
and measurement provisions of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related
interpretations. In accordance with those provisions, because the exercise price of all options granted under those
plans equaled the market value of the underlying stock at the grant date, no stock-based employee compensation
cost was recorded in the accompanying financial statements for periods prior to January 1, 2006. Using the
Black-Scholes option pricing model for ali options granted, the following table illustrates what net income and
earnings per share would have been if Sonic had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation for the years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2005:

For the Year ended
December 31,

2004 2005

(dollars in thousands
except per share

amounts)
Netincome asrestated . ... ... ... ... .. e $86.07F  $91.861
Fair value compensation cost, net of tax benefits of $4,692 and
$3,531 for 2004 and 2005, respectively .............ccc.un... (7,514) (5.523)

Proformanetincome .......... . i $78,557 386,338
Basic earnings (loss) per share:

Netincome asrestated . ... ..ottt et $ 208 % 220

Fair value compensation cost, netoftax .................... (0.18) (0.14)

Proformanetincome ... ... . ... 0.ttt 5 190 § 206
Diluted earnings (loss) per share:

Netincome asrestated . . . ... .. ... ... 0 i $ 200 § 212

Fair value compensation cost, netoftax .................... {0.16} (0.12)

Pro formanetincome . ......... ... .. . . . . . ... 5 184 § 200

A summary of the status of restricted stock and restricted stock unit grants related to the Stock Plans is
presented below:
Unvested Restricted Weighted Average

Stock and Restricted Grant Date Fair
Stock Units Value
(in thousands)
Balance—December 31,2005 .................. 141 $21.66
Granted ......... ... ... ... i 143 28.86
Vested . ... .. . . e (19 21.96

Balance—December 31,2006 . ................. E $25.52

In the year ended December 31, 2004, 160,000 restricted shares of Sonic Class A common stock were
awarded to certain executive officers. The restrictions on these restricted shares expire in August 2007. Also in
2005. 12,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock were awarded to an executive officer. This award is
subject to the same restrictions and rights as the restricted stock granted to certain executive officers in 2004,
During 2005, 16,470 restricted shares of Class A common stock were awarded to non-employee directors of
Sonic’s Board of Directors under the 2005 Formula Restricted Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (the
*2005 Formula Plan™). In 2005, 2,660 restricted shares of Class A common stock were awarded to a new
non-employee director of Sonic's Board of Directors under the 2005 Formula Plan, The restrictions on these
shares granted to Non-Employee Directors generally expire one year from the grant date. Near the end of 2005,
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Sonic’s former Chief Financial Officer forfeited his grant of 50,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock in
connection with his resignation. As a result, previously recognized compensation expense relating to these
50,000 shares was reversed, resulting in a reduction of selling, general and administrative expenses of
$0.3 million in 2005. Holders of these restricted shares have voting rights and receive dividends prior to the time
the restrictions lapse if, and to the extent, dividends are paid on Sonic’s Class A common stock.

In the year ended December 31, 2006, approximately 143,000 restricted shares of Class A common stock
and restricted stock units were awarded to Sonic’s Board of Directors, executive officers and other key associates
under the 2004 Plan. The awards of restricted shares to directors were made pursuant to the 2005 Formula Plan
and vest the day before the next annual meeting of Sonic’s stockholders. The awards to executive officers and
other key associates were made in connection with establishing the objective performance criteria for 2006
incentive compensation and cliff-vest in three years. The shares and units awarded to executive officers and other
key associates are subject to forfeiture, in whole or in part, based upon specified measures of Sonic’s earnings
per share performance for the 20006 fiscal year, continuation of employment and compliance with any restrictive
covenants contained in any agreement between Sonic and the respective officer and other key associates, These
awards are generally subject to the same restrictions and rights as the shares of restricted stock granted to certain
executive officers in 2004 and 2005, except that the restricted stock units do not have voting rights and that
dividends on the restricted stock units are paid to the holders in the year subsequent to the dividend declarations.
Sonic recognized compensation expense within selling, general and administrative expenses related to unvested
restricted stock and restricted stock units of $1.3 million and $2.3 million in the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2006, respectively. Tax benefits recognized related (o the compensation expenses were $0.5 million and
$0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2006, respectively. Total compensation cost related to
unvested restricted stock not yet recognized at December 31, 2006 was $3.6 million and is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.6 years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan and Nonqualified Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Board of Directors and stockholders of Sonic adopted the Sonic Automotive, Inc. Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) 1o attract and retain key personnel. The ESPP authorizes the issuance of options to
purchase 3.0 million shares of Class A common stock. Under the terms of the ESPP, on January 1 of each year
all eligible employees electing to participate will be granted an option to purchase shares of Class A common
stock. Sonic’s Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors will annually determine the number of shares
of Class A common stock available for purchase under each award. The purchase price at which Class A
common stock will be purchased through the ESPP is 85% of the lesser of (i) the fair market value of the Class A
common stock on the applicable grant date and (ii} the fair market value of the Class A common steck on the
applicable exercise date. The grant dates are January | of each year plus any other interim dates designated by
the Compensation Committee. The exercise dates are the last trading days on the New York Stock Exchange for
March, June, September and December, plus any other interim dates designated by the Compensation
Committee. ESPP options will expire on the last exercise date of the calendar year in which granted.

The Board of Directors of Sonic adopted the Sonic Automotive, Inc. Nenqualified Employee Stock
Purchase Plan (the “Nonqualified ESPP”) to provide options to purchase Class A commaon stock to employees of
Sonic’s subsidiaries that are not eligible to participate in the ESPP. Employees of Sonic who are eligible to
participate in the ESPP are not eligible to participate in the Nonqualified ESPP. Under the terms of the
Nonqualified ESPP, on January | of each year all employees eligible to participate in the Nonqualified ESPP and
who elect to participate in the Nongualified ESPP will be granted an option to purchase shares of Class A
common stock. Sonic’s Compensation Committee will annually determine the number of shares of Class A
common stock available for purchase under each award.
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The purchase price at which Class A common stock will be purchased through the Nonqualified ESPP is
85% of the lesser of (i) the fair market value of the Class A common stock on the applicable grant date and
(i1) the fair market value of the Class A common stock on the applicable exercise date. The grant dates are
January | of each year plus any other interim dates designated by the Compensation Committee. The exercise
dates are the last trading days on the New York Siock Exchange for March, June, September and December, plus
any other interim dates designated by the Compensation Committee. Nonqualified ESPP options will expire on
the last exercise date of the calendar year in which granted. In adopting the Nonqualified ESPP the Board of
Directors authorized options for 300,000 shares of Class A common stock to be granted under the Nonqualified
ESPP.

Under both the ESPP and the Nonqualified ESPP, Sonic issued options exercisable for approximately
1,058,000 shares in 2004, 1,043,000 shares in 2005, and O shares in 2006. Sonic issued approximately
208,000 shares in 2004, 184,000 shares in 2005 and 32,395 shares to employees in 2006 at a weighted average
purchase price of $18.95, $19.07 and $18.94 per share, respectively. The weighted average fair value of shares
granted under both the ESPP and the Nonqualified ESPP was $5.84 and $8.20 per share in 2004, and 2005,
respectively. Sonic received $0.6 million in cash from the exercise of ESPP options during the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Black-Scholes Assumptions

The weighted average fair value of options granted in each of the three years ended December 31, 2004,
2005 and 2006 was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following weighted average
assurmptions:

2004 2005 2006 (1)
Stock Option Plans
Dividendyield .......................... 1.60—2.56% 2.02—2.50% 1.82—2.06%
Risk free interestrates . ................. . 2.80—3.65% 3.58—434% 4.54—4.97%
Expectedlives .......................... 5 years 5 years 3.5—5 years
Volatility ... i 50.17% 47.69% 36.60%
Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Dividendyield.......................... 1.68% 1.94% N/A
Risk free interestrates ................... 1.31% 2.59% N/A
Expectedlives . ........ ... ............ 0.5 year 0.5 year N/A
Volatility ..o 41.98% 47.69% N/A

(1) No Employee Stock Purchase Plan Grants were made in 2006.

Sonic used an expected term of three and a half to five years for current year option grants based on several
facts associated with past grants and exercises. First, the historical exercise experience indicates that the expected
term is at least three years (consistent with the three year graded vesting period attached to the majority of these
options) and the majority of Sonic’s grants are in the early to middle stages of their contractual terms of ten
years; second, the contractual term of all of Sonic’s options is ten years; and third, since Sonic began granting
stock options in 1997, none of these stock option grants have completed their contractual term of ten years.

Expected volatility was estimated using Sonic’s stock price over the last three years. Prior to this period,
Sonic was a fast growing, new company in an un-established retail sector of the equity market. As such, the
volatility of Sonic’s stock between 1997 and 2002 was higher than what is expected in the future due to a change
in strategy that includes slowing the pace of acquisitions and the payment of quarterly dividends and the
establishment of the retail automotive sector in the equity market.
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11, COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Facility and Equipment Leases

During 2006, Sonic’s management decided to cease using several dealership properties which are leased
under operating leases. Accordingly, operating lease exit accruals in the amount of $9.6 million were established
in the year ended December 31, 2006. Of the $9.6 million accrual established in the year ended December 31,
2006, $2.0 millicn was recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses and $7.6 million was recorded in
discontinued operations. These operating lease accruals represent the present value of the lease payments, net of
estimated sublease rentals, for the remaining life of the operating leases and other accruals necessary to satisfy
the lease commitment to the landlord. A summary of the activity of these operating lease accruals consists of the
following:

(dollars in thousands)

Balance, December 31,2005 . ... ... ., $ 601
Lease exXit EXPense . ...ttt e e 9,598
Payments . ... . (1.,468)
Balance, December 31,2006 . ... ... .. . ... $ 8730

The Company leases facilities for the majority of its dealership operations under operating lease
arrangements, These facility lease arrangements generally have fifteen to twenty year terms with one or two five
year renewal options and do not contain provisions for contingent rent retated to dealership’s operations.
Approximately 20% of these facility leases are based on capitalization rates with payments that vary based on
interest rates. The Company also leases certain equipment for use in dealership operations. These equipment
lease arrangements generally have three to five year terms with one or two year renewal options. Minimum
future lease payments for both facility and equipment leases and sub-leases to be received as required under
noncancelable operating leases for both continuing and discontinued operations based on interest rates as of the
inception of each lease are as follows:

Future Receipts
Minimum from

Lease Future
Year ending December 31, Payments, Net Subleases

(dollars in thousands)
2007 .« $129,369 $(12,159)
2008 . e 121,795 (10,507)
2000 .. 110,798 (8,833)
2000 . 108,443 (8.096)
1 O P 111,080 (7,629)
Thereafter ... ..o i i 832,624 (53,649)

Total lease expense for continuing operations in 2004, 2005 and 2006 was approximately $94.2 million,
$108.1 million and $113.8 million, respectively. Total lease expense for discontinued operations in 2004, 2005
and 2006 was approximately $13.3 million, $10.7 million and $23.0 million, respectively. The total net
contingent rent benefit relating to a decrease in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for
continuing operations in 2004 and 2005 was $2.3 million, $0.6 million respectively. The total net contingent rent
benefit relating to a decrease in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for discontinued operations
in 2004 and 2005 was $0.5 million and $0.4 million respectively. Total contingent rent expense relating to an
increase in interest rates since the underlying leases commenced for continuing and discontinued operations in
2006 were $2.9 million and $0.2 million respectively.
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Guarantees and Indemnifications

In accordance with the terms of Sonic’s operating lease agreements, Sonic’s dealership subsidiaries, acting
as lessees, generally agree to indemnify the lessor from certain exposure arising as a result of the use of the
leased premises, including environmental exposure and repairs (o leased property upon termination of the lease.
In addition, Sonic has generally agreed to indemnify the lessor in the event of a breach of the lease by the lessee.

In connection with franchise dispositions, certain of Sonic’s dealership subsidiaries have assigned or sublet
to the buyer its interests in real property leases associated with such dealerships. In general, the subsidiaries
retain responsibility for the performance of certain obligations under such leases, including rent payments, and
repairs to leased property upon termination of the lease, to the extent that the assignee or sublessee does not
perform, The total estimated rent payments remaining, before consideration of sublease proceeds, under such
leases as of December 31, 2006 was approximately $136.7 million. However, in accordance with the terms of the
assignment and sublease agreements, the assignees and sublessees have generally agreed to indemnify Sonic and
its subsidiaries in the event of non-performance. Additionally, in connection with certain dispositions, Sonic has
obtained indemnifications from the parent company or owners of these assignees and sublessees in the event of
non-performance.

In accordance with the terms of agreements entered into for the sale of Sonic’s franchises, Sonic generally
agrees to indemnify the buyer from certain liabilities and costs arising subsequent to the date of sale, including
environmental exposure and exposure resulting from the breach of representations or warranties made in
accordance with the agreement. While Sonic’s exposure with respect to environmental remediation and repairs is
difficult to quantify, Sonic’s maximum exposure associated with these general indemnifications was
$32.3 million at December 31, 2006. These indemnifications generally expire within a period of one to three
years following the date of sale. The estimated fair value of these indemnifications was not material.

Legal Matters

Sonic is a defendant in the matter of Galura, et al. v. Sonic Automotive, Inc., a private civil action filed in
the Circuit Court of Hillsborough County, Florida. In this action, originally filed on December 30, 2002, the
plaintiffs allege that Senic and Sonic's Florida dealerships sold an antitheft protection product in a deceptive or
otherwise illegal manner, and further sought representation on behalf of any customer of any of Sonic’s Florida
dealerships who purchased the antitheft protection product since December 30, 1998. The plaintiffs are seeking
monetary damages and injunctive relief on behalf of this class of customers. In June 2005, the court granted the
plaintiffs’ motion for certification of the requested class of customers, but the court has made no finding to date
regarding actual liability in this lawsuit. Sonic subsequently filed a notice of appeal of the court’s class
certification ruling with the Florida Court of Appeals. Sonic intends to continue its vigorous defense of this
lawsuit, including the aferementioned appeal of the trial court’s class certification order, and to assert available
defenses. However, an adverse resolution of this lawsuit could result in the payment of significant costs and
damages, which could have a material adverse effect on Sonic’s future results of operations, financial condition
and cash flows.

Sonic is involved, and expects to continue to be involved, in numerous legal and administrative proceedings
arising out of the conduct of Sonic’s business, including regulatory investigations and private civil actions
brought by plaintiffs purporting to represent a potential class or for which a class has been certified. Although
Sonic vigorously defends itself in all legal and administrative proceedings, the outcomes of pending and future
proceedings arising out of the conduct of Sonic’s business, including litigation with customers, employment
related lawsuits, contractual disputes, class actions, purported class actions and actions brought by governmental
authorities, cannot be predicted with certainty. An unfavorable resolution of one or more of these matters could
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prospects. Included in other accrued liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 2006 were $3.5 million and
$2.0 million, respectively, in reserves that Sonic has provided for pending proceedings.

12. SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The following table summarizes Sonic’s results of operations as presented in the Consolidated Statements of
Income by quarter for 2005 and 2006.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(Dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31, 2005;

Total revenues .. ... ... ... ..., $1.629,303 $1.886,171 $1924.513 $1.838,733
Grossprofit ........ ... .. e $ 255725 % 284,188 3 290,954 § 286,178
NetinCOME ..ot ie et ie e it 3 17112 § 27004 $ 26804 § 20941
Earnings per share—Basic .................. ... $ 041 $ 065 § 064 § 0.50
Earnings per share—Diluted .. ............... ... 3 040 $ 062 $ 0.61 % 0.48
Year Ended December 31, 2006:
Total revenues . ........ouririremnennennnn.n. $1,878,172 $2,0069,031 $2,000,439 351958412
Grossprofit ........... i i $ 206,779 % 313,031 $ 316,710 $ 305,062
NEeLINCOME .« .ottt e $ 17,082 $ 12,188 § 28,608 $ 23239
Earnings per share—Basic ..................... $ 041 % 029 % 0.68 $§ 0.54
Earnings per share—Diluted . ................... b 039 3 0.29 3% 0.65 $ 0.52

{1y Operations are subject to seasonal variations. The first and fourth quarters generally contribute less revenue
and operating profits than the second and third quarters. Parts and service demand remains more stable
throughout the year.

(2) The sum of basic and dituted earnings per share for the quarters may not equal the full year amount due to
weighted average common shares being calculated on a quarterly versus annual basis.

(3) Amounts presented differ from amounts previously reported on Form 10-Q due to the classification of
certain franchises in discontinued and continuing operations in accordance with SFAS No. 144 (see Note 2).
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Corporate Governance

Sonic’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, the
charters for the commitiees of the Board of Directors
and Corporate Governance Guidelines are available
on our website at www.sonicautomotive.com and in
print upon request to Sonic’s Secretary at the
principal executive offices.

Management’s Certifications

The certifications of Sonic’s principal executive
officer and principal financial officer required by the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act regarding the quality of Sonic’s
public disclosure have been included as Exhibits 31
and 32 in Sonic’s 2006 Annual Report on Form
10-K. In addition, in 2006, Sonic's Chief Executive
Officer provided to the New York Stock Exchange
the annual CEO certification regarding Sonic’s
compliance with the New York Stock Exchange’s
corporate governance listing standards.

Form 10-K

A stockholder may obtain a free copy of Sonic’s
2006 Annual Report on Form 10-K, which was
filed with the SEC, by contacting:

Todd Atenhan

Sonic Automotive, Inc.
Investor Relations

6415 Idlewild Road. Suite 109
Charlotte, NC 28212

Phone: 888-766-4218

This Annual Report contains numerous “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the
Private Litigation Securities Reform Act of 1995,
These forward-looking statements address our future
objectives, plans and goals, as well as our intent,
beliefs and current expectations regarding future
operating performance, and can generally be
identified by words such as “may,” “will,” “should,”
“believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,”
“foresee” and other similar words or phrases.
Specific events addressed by these forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to:

ELIYS LLIT

» future acquisitions or dispositicns;
* industry trends;

* pgeneral economic  trends, including
employment rates and consumer confidence
levels;

72

* vehicle sales rates and same store sales
growth;

» our financing plans; and

* our business and growth strategies.

These forward-looking statements are based on our
current estimates and assumptions and involve
various risks and uncertainties. As a result, you are
cautioned that these forward-looking statements are
not guarantees of future performance. and that actual
results could differ materially from those projected in
these forward-looking statements. Factors which may
cause actual results to differ materially from our
projections include those risks described in Item 1A
of our Annval Report on Form |0-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 and elsewhere in this
Annual Report, as well as:

¢ our ability to generate sufficient cash flows
or obtain additional financing to support
acquisitions, capital expenditures, our share
repurchase program, dividends on our
Common Stock and general operating
activities;

* the reputation and financial condition of
vehicle manufacturers whose brands we
represent, the financial incentives they offer
and their ability to design, manufacture,
deliver and market their  vehicles
successfully;

*  our relationships with manufacturers, which
may affect our ability to complete additional
acquisitions;

* changes in laws and regulations governing
the operation of automobile franchises,
accounting standards, taxation requirements,
and environmenta! laws;

* general economic conditions in the markets
in which we operate, including fluctuations
in interest rates, employment levels, the
level of consumer spending and consumer
credit availability;

= high competition in the automotive retailing
industry, which not only creates pricing
pressures on the products and services we
offer, but on businesses we seek to acquire;
and

» the timing of and our ability to successfully
integrate recent and potential  future
acquisitions.
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Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cumulative
stockholder return on Sonic's Class A Common Stock against the
cumulative total return of each of the Standuard and Paor’s 300
Stock Index and two Peer Group Indices for the ane period
commencing December 31, 2001 and ending December 3 1. 2006,
The companies used in the Old Peer Group Index consist of
AutoNation, Group 1 Automotive, United Auto Group. Car Max
and Lithia Motors. The companies used in the New Peer Group
index consist of AutoNation, Group 1 Automotive. United Auto
Group. Lithia Motors and Asbury Automotive Group. All these
companies are publicly traded companies known by Sonic 1o be
involved in the automotive retail industry. Sonic elected to include
Asbury Automnotive Group in the New Peer Group comparison
rather than Car Max because Sonic believes Asbury Automolive
Group's business is more comparable to Sonic's than Car Max's.
The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2001
in each of Sonic’s Class A Common Stock. the Standard & Poor's
500+ Stock Index. the Old Peer Group Index and the New Peer
Group Index and that all dividends were reinvested.
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